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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-IS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17.1(b)
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

1. Check the appropriate box:

 Preliminary Information Statement

 Definitive Information Statement

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter

APC Group, Inc.
3. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

Metro Manila, Philippines
4. SEC Identification Number

AS093-8127
5. BIR Tax Identification Code

002-834-075
6. Address of principal office

G/F MyTown New York Building, General E. Jacinto corner Capas Streets,
BarangayGuadalupe Nuevo, Makati City
Postal Code
1212

7. Registrant's telephone number, including area code

(+632) 8662-8888
8. Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

June 28, 2024, 11:00 am, to be conducted virtually/electronically
9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security holders

May 15, 2025
10. In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor

-
Address and Telephone No.

-

11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):



 No Yes

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding

Common Stock 7,504,203,997

13. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc./Common Stock

The Exchange does not warrant and holds no responsibility for the veracity of the facts and representations contained in all corporate
disclosures, including financial reports. All data contained herein are prepared and submitted by the disclosing party to the Exchange,
and are disseminated solely for purposes of information. Any questions on the data contained herein should be addressed directly to
the Corporate Information Officer of the disclosing party.

APC Group, Inc.
APC

PSE Disclosure Form 17-5 - Information Statement for Annual or 
Special Stockholders' Meeting 
References: SRC Rule 20 and 

Section 17.10 of the Revised Disclosure Rules

Date of Stockholders'
Meeting Jun 26, 2025

Type (Annual or
Special) Annual

Time 11:00 am

Venue to be conducted virtually

Record Date May 15, 2025

Inclusive Dates of Closing of Stock Transfer Books

Start Date N/A

End date N/A

Other Relevant Information

Kindly refer to the attached.



Filed on behalf by:

Name Ian Jason Aguirre

Designation President and CEO
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June 26, 2025 | 11:00 a.m. 
 

TO: ALL STOCKHOLDERS: 
 

Please take notice that the Annual Meeting of APC Group, Inc. will be held on   June 26, 2025, 
Thursday at 11:00 a.m. The meeting will be conducted virtually, and voting will be conducted in absentia 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Proof of Notice of Meeting and Quorum 
3. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on June 28, 2024 
4. Approval of 2024 Operations and Results 
5. Ratification of All Acts of the Board of Directors, Board Committees, and Management 

during their term of office 
6. Election of Directors for 2025-2026 
7. Appointment of External Auditors 
8. Other Matters 
9. Adjournment 

 
Attached is the rationale for the above agenda items for reference. 

 
The Board of Directors has fixed the end of trading hours of the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. on May 15, 
2025 as the Record Date for the determination of stockholders entitled to the notice of, participation via remote 
communication, and voting in absentia at such meeting and any adjournment thereof. 

 
The conduct of the meeting will be streamed live, and stockholders may attend the meeting by emailing 
apc governance@bellecorp.com and submitting the required documents until June 23, 2025. All information 
submitted shall be verified and validated by the Corporate Secretary. 

 
Stockholders who wish to cast votes through a proxy may accomplish the proxy form (which need not be 
notarized) and submit the same to the Office of the Corporate Secretary at the 23rd Floor, Philippine Stock 
Exchange Centre, East Tower Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City or via electronic copy by emailing 
apc governance@bellecorp.com on or before 5:00 pm of June 23, 2025. For corporate stockholders, the 

signatory. 
 

Stockholders who successfully validated/registered can cast their votes in absentia 
secured e-mail for this meeting. In order to participate remotely, they will also be provided with access to the 
meeting that will be held virtually. Guidelines for Participation via Remote Communication and Voting 
in Absentia Schedule A
Information Statement, Annual Report on SEC Form 17-A (once available) and other pertinent materials for 

(https://www.apcaragorn.net/investor-
relations/annual-stockholders-meeting/) and PSE Edge. 
 
City of Pasig, May ____, 2025. 

           
 
 
        RICHARD ANTHONY D. ALCAZAR 

                                                                                                                    Corporate Secretary 
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RATIONALE FOR AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1. Call to Order. The Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Willy N. Ocier, will call the meeting to order. 
 
2. Certification of Notice and Quorum. The Corporate Secretary, Atty. Richard Anthony D. Alcazar will certify 

that copies of this Notice were sent to Stockholders of record as of May 15, 2025. The Corporate Secretary will 
also certify the number of attendees, whether in person or by proxy, for the purpose of determining the existence 
of quorum to validly transact business. 

 
3. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on June 28, 2024. The Minutes of 

the June 28, 2024  
https://www.apcaragorn.net/wp-content/uploads/APC-28-June-2024-Minutes-of-Stockholders-Meeting-
DRAFT.pdf  Copies of the minutes of the annual  meeting held on June 28, 2024 are available for 
inspection during office hours at the office of the Corporate 

 meeting were also timely disclosed with the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. and the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (SEC). The minutes, as recommended by the Board of Directors, are subject to 

 meeting. 
 
4. Approval of 2024 Operations and Results. 4 performance results have been summarized 

in the Annual Report, which includes the Audited Financial Statements (AFS) of the Company for the year ended 
December 31, 2024. The AFS, as audited by the external auditor which expressed an unqualified opinion therefor, 
have been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. Stockholders, after 
identifying themselves, will be given an opportunity to raise questions regarding the operations and report of 
the Company during the ASM. 

 
5. Ratification of all Acts of the Board of Directors, Board Committees and the Management during their 

term of office. All actions, proceedings and contracts entered into, as well as resolutions made, including 
approvals of significant related party transactions, of the Board of Directors, the Board Committees and the 
Management from the last ASM held on June 28, 2024 until June 26, 2025 will be presented to the shareholders 

4, as detailed in the Annual 
Report, is attributed to the strategic directions and key policies set by the Board of Directors which were 
effectively executed and complied with by Management in conformance with good corporate governance and 
ethical best practices. The ratification of the acts undertaken by the Board of Directors, Board Committees, and 
Management is subject  meeting. 

 
6. Election of Directors for 2025-2026. The Directors of the Company, including Independent Directors, have 

been pre- s directors for 2025-2026. 
Their proven competence, expertise and qualifications based on current regulatory standards, will help sustain 

Directors 
are contained in the Definitive Information Statement for reference of the stockholders and are likewise posted 

5-2026 
If elected, they shall serve as such from June 26, 2025 until their successors shall have been duly qualified and 
elected. 

 
7. Appointment of External Auditor. As pre-screened and recommended by the Audit Committee, the Board 

has endorsed for stockholder approval the appointment of Reyes Tacandong & Co. as the  external 
auditor for 2025. Reyes Tacandong & Co. is one of the top auditing firms in the country and is duly accredited 
by the SEC. The appointment of Reyes Tacandong & Co. as external auditor of the Company for 2025 is subject 

delegate to the Board the authority to approve the appropriate audit fee for 2025. 
 
8. Other Matters. The Chairman will open the floor for comments and questions by the stockholders. Stockholders 

may raise other matters or issues that may be properly taken up at the meeting. 
 
9. Adjournment. After all business has been considered and resolved, the Chairman shall declare the meeting 

adjourned. 
 



PROXY FORM 
 

The undersigned stockholder of APC Group Inc. (the  registered in the name of Philippine Central 
Depository Nominee Corporation, if applicable*, hereby appoints                                                                                                 
(as sub-proxy,*) or in his absence, the Chairman of the meeting, as attorney and proxy, with power of substitution, 
to represent and vote all shares registered in his/her/its name as proxy of the undersigned stockholder, at the Annual 
Meeting of Stockholders of the Company on June 26, 2025 and at any of the adjournments thereof for the purpose 
of acting on the following matters: 

 
1. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting 

held on June 28, 2024 
 

   Yes  No  Abstain 

6. At their discretion, the proxies named above are 
authorized to vote upon such other matters as may be 
properly come before the meeting 

 
   Yes  No  Abstain 

2. Approval of 2024 Operations and Results  
 
 

 

Printed Name of Stockholder/Broker/PCD Participant 

 
   

Signature of Stockholder or Name and Signature 
of Authorized Signatory of Corporate 
Stockholder/ Broker/PCD Participant 

 
   

Date 

This Proxy must be submitted together with the following: 

For Individual Stockholders 
If a representative will sign on behalf of stockholder, this proxy 
must be submitted together with a duly executed Special of 
General Power of Attorney showing the authority of the 
representative to sign on behalf of the individual stockholder. 

 
For Corporate Stockholders 

of the representative to sign on behalf of the stockholder 
corporation. Enclosed is a sample  Certificate for 
your reference. 

 
For PCD Participants/Brokers 

of the representative to sign on behalf of the PCD 
Participant/Broker, as well as the duly accomplished proxy or 
certificate of shareholdings issued by the PDTC. Enclosed is a 

 

   Yes  No  Abstain 

3. Ratification of all Acts of the Board of Directors, Board 
Committees and the Management during their term of 
office 

   Yes  No  Abstain 

4. Election of Directors for 2025 to 2026 

   4.1 Vote for all nominees listed below: 
a. Willy N. Ocier 
b. Ian Jason R Aguirre 
c. Rafael M. Alunan III (Independent) 
d. Armin Antonio B. Raquel Santos 
e. Edmundo L. Tan 
f. Jerry C. Tiu (Independent) 
g. Virginia A. Yap 

   4.2 Withhold authority for all nominees above 
   4.3 Withhold authority to vote for the 

nominees listed below: 
  

_____________________ ______________________ 
  

____________________  _____________________ 
 

5. Appointment of External Auditors 

   Yes  No  Abstain 

 
THIS PROXY SHOULD BE RECEIVED BY THE CORPORATE SECRETARY AT LEAST THREE (3) 
BUSINESS DAYS BEFORE THE DATE SET FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING AS PROVIDED IN THE BY-
LAWS. 
 
THIS PROXY IS NOT REQUIRED TO BE NOTARIZED, AND WHEN PROPERLY EXECUTED, WILL BE 
VOTED IN THE MANNER AS DIRECTED HEREIN BY THE STOCKHOLDER(S). IF NO DIRECTION IS 

APPROVAL OF THE MATTERS STATED ABOVE AND FOR SUCH OTHER MATTERS AS MAY 
PROPERLY COME BEFORE THE MEETING IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED IN THE INFORMATION 
STATEMENT AND/OR AS RECOMMENDED BY MANAGEMENT OR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. 
 
A STOCKHOLDER GIVING A PROXY HAS THE POWER TO REVOKE IT AT ANY TIME BEFORE THE 
RIGHT GRANTED IS EXERCISED. A PROXY IS ALSO CONSIDERED REVOKED IF THE STOCKHOLDER 
ATTENDS THE MEETING IN PERSON AND EXPRESSED HIS INTENTION TO VOTE IN PERSON. 
 
THIS PROXY FORM SHALL BE VALID FOR FIVE (5) YEARS FROM DATE HEREOF. 

 
* For PCD Participants/Brokers 



5 
 

SPECIAL POWER OF ATTORNEY 
 
 

Know all men by these presents: 
 
I,  ,   citizen, of legal age and a resident of 
     , do hereby 
name, constitute, and appoint   ,   citizenship, of legal 
age and a resident of       , 
to be my true and lawful attorney-in-fact for myself and in my name, place and stead, to do and perform the 
following acts and things, namely: 
 
1. To attend the 2025 hereof, of which 
I am a shareholder, and then and there to exercise my voice and vote and whatsoever privileges, rights, and 
prerogatives may correspond to me by reason of my shares therein; and 
 
2. To delegate in whole or in part any or all of the powers and authorities herein covered, by means of an instrument 
in writing in favor of any third person or persons whom the attorney-in-fact may select. 
 
 

Acknowledgement 
 
 

Republic of the Philippines) 
   ) 
 
 Before me, a Notary Public for and in the City of  , this     day of  2025 personally 
appeared   who presented to me his/her  issued ID 
No.) issued on    at  and who was identified by me through his/her 
competent evidence of identity to be the same person described in the foregoing instrument, who acknowledged 
before me that his/her signature on the instrument was voluntarily affixed by him/her for the purposes stated therein, 
and who declared to me that he/she has executed the instrument as his/her free and voluntary act and deed. 
 

This instrument refers to the Special Power of Attorney consisting of ( ) pages, including this page, and 
signed by the persons executing this instrument and sealed with the notarial seal. 

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL on the date and place first above written.  

 

Doc. No.   ; 
Page No.  ;  
Book No.  ;  
Series of  . 
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I,   ,   citizen, of legal age and with 
office address at ________________________________________________, do hereby certify that: 
 
1. I am the duly appointed Corporate Secretary of                 (the  
a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the Republic of the Philippines, with 
office address at                                                      . 
 
2. Based on the records, during the lawfully convened meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation held on 
                                                                                           , the following resolutions were passed and approved: 

 
 That  , 

   be authorized and appointed, as he 
is hereby authorized and appointed, as the Corporati
meetings of the stockholders of APC Group, Inc. (APC) whether the meeting is regular or 
special, or at any meeting postponed or adjourned therefrom, with full authority to vote the 
shares of stock of the Corporation held in APC and to act upon all matters and resolution 
that may come before or presented during meetings, or any adjournments thereof, in the 
name, place and stead of the Corporation. 

 
resolution 

and APC may rely on the continuing validity of this resolution until receipt of written notice 
of its  

 
3. The foregoing resolutions have not been modified, amended or revoked in accordance with the records of the 

Corporation presently in my custody. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed this instrument in  on                             . 
 
 
 
 

Printed Name and Signature of the 
Corporate Secretary 

 
 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME on       in                 . 
Affiant exhibited to me his Competent Evidence of Identity by way of       issued on 
 at  . 
 
 

Doc. No.  ; 
Page No.  ; 
Book No.  ; 
Series of  . 
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
SEC FORM 20-IS 

 
Information Statement Pursuant to Section 20 of the Securities Regulation Code 
 
 
1. Check the appropriate box: 
 

X  Preliminary Information Statement 

      Definitive Information Statement 
 

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: APC GROUP, INC. 
 
3. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation: Philippines 
 
4. SEC Identification Number: AS93008127 
 
5. BIR Tax Identification Number: 002-834-075 
 
6. Address of principal office: G/F MyTown New York Bldg., Gen. E. Jacinto St. corner Capas St., Brgy. 

Guadalupe Nuevo, Makati City, 1212 
 
7. (632) 8662-8888 

 
8. Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders: 
 

Date:   June 26, 2025, Thursday 
6, 2025, instead of on the 

2nd Thursday of June (or June 12, 2025) 
was necessitated to allow ) the Corporation more time to comply with the reports 
required for submission to its regulators. 

 
Time:  11:00 AM 
Venue:  Videoconferencing via Zoom Webinar 

 
Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security holders: 
May 15, 2025 

9. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the SRC 
 

       Number of Shares of Common Stock 
 Title of Each Class  Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding 
 
 Common Stock  7,504,203,997 shares (as of April 30, 2024) 
 
10. Are any or all of these securities listed on a stock exchange? 
 
   Yes ( x )  No  (    ) 
 

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein: 
Philippine Stock Exchange 

 
Class of Shares Listed: Common Shares 

 
WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE 

REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY. 
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A. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Item 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders. 

 
(a) Date: June 26, 2025, Thursday 

6, 2025, instead of on the 
2nd Thursday of June (or June 12, 2025) as provided in t
was necessitated to allow the Corporation more time to comply with the reports 
required for submission to its regulators. 

 
Time: 11:00 AM 
Place: Videoconferencing via Zoom Webinar 

 
(b) The approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security holders 

is on May 15, 2025. 
 
(c) The complete mailing address of the principal office of APC Group, Inc.  G/F 

MyTown New York Bldg., Gen. E. Jacinto St. corner Capas St., Brgy. Guadalupe Nuevo, Makati 
City 1212 Philippines 

 
 

 
 

The matters to be voted upon in the Annual  Meeting on June 26, 2025 are not among the 
instances enumerated in Sections 41 and 80 of the Revised Corporation Code   the 
right of any stockholder to dissent and demand payment of the fair value of his shares may be exercised. The 
instances where the right of appraisal may be exercised are as follows: 
 
1. In case any amendment to the Articles of Incorporation has the effect of changing or restricting the rights 

of any stockholders or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences to any respect superior to those 
outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or shortening the term of corporate existence; 

2. In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other dispositions of all or substantially 
all of the corporate property and assets as provided in the Revised Code; 

3. In case of the investment of the corporate funds in another corporation or business or for any purpose 
other than its primary purpose; and 

4. In case of merger or consolidation. 
 
In case the right of appraisal will be exercised, Section 82 of the Revised Corporation Code provides for the 
appropriate procedure, viz: 
 
The appraisal right may be exercised by any stockholder who shall have voted against the proposed corporate 
action, by making a written demand on the Company within thirty (30) days after the date on which the vote 
was taken for payment of the fair value of his shares: Provided, that failure to make the demand within such 
period shall be deemed a waiver of the appraisal right. If the proposed corporate action is implemented or 
affected, the Company shall pay to such stockholder, upon surrender of the certificate(s) of stock representing 
his shares, the fair value thereof as of the day prior to the date on which the vote was taken, excluding any 
appreciation or depreciation in anticipation of such corporate action. 
 
If within a period of sixty (60) days from the date the corporate action was approved by the stockholders, 
the withdrawing stockholder and the Company cannot agree on the fair value of the shares, it shall be 
determined and appraised by three (3) disinterested persons, one of whom shall be named by the stockholder, 
another by the Company and the third by the two thus chosen. The findings of the majority of the appraisers 
shall be final, and their award shall be paid by the Company within thirty (30) days after such award is 
made: Provided, that no payment shall be made to any dissenting stockholder unless the Company has 
unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such payment: and Provided, further, that upon payment 
by the Company of the agreed or awarded price, the stockholder shall forthwith transfer his shares to the 
Company. 

 
 

Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon 
 

(a) No person who has been a director or officer or a nominee for election as director of the Company or 
associate of such persons, has a substantial interest, direct or indirect, in any matter to be acted upon 
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other than the election of directors for the year 2025-2026. 
(b) The Company is not aware of any director or security holder who intends to oppose any action to be 

 meeting. 
 
 

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION 

Item 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof 

(a) Voting Securities 
 

As of April 30, 2025, the Registrant has 7,504,203,997 common shares outstanding and each share is 
entitled to one vote. As of April 30, 2025, out of the outstanding capital stock of the Company, 
533,459,509 common shares or 7.11% is owned by foreigners. 

 
 
(b) Record Date 

 
The Record Date with respect to the determination of the stockholders entitled to notice of and vote at 
the Annual Stockholders' Meeting is May 15, 2025. 

 

(c) Voting Rights 
 

At every meeting of the stockholders, each stockholder shall be entitled to vote in person or by proxy 
and, unless otherwise provided by law, he shall have one vote for each share of stock entitled to vote 
and recorded in his name in the books of the Corporation. At all meetings of the stockholders, all 
elections and all questions shall be decided by the plurality of vote of stockholders present in person 
or by proxy and entitled to vote thereat, a quorum being present, except in cases where other provision 
is made by statute. Unless required by law, or demanded by a stockholder present in person or by proxy 
at any meeting, and entitled to vote thereat, the vote on any question need not be by ballot. On a vote by 
ballot, each ballot shall be signed by the stockholder voting, or in his name by proxy if there be such 
proxy, and shall state the number of shares voted by him. 

 
With respect to the election of directors of seven (7) directors, each stockholder may vote such number 
of shares for as many as seven (7) persons he may choose to be elected from the list of nominees, or 
he may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of his shares 
multiplied by seven (7) shall equal, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many 
candidates as he shall see fit, provided that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the 
number of shares owned by him multiplied by seven (7). 

 
In light of the community quarantine imposed over various areas of the country and to ensure the 

will be conducted virtually, and will be broadcasted via livestreaming accessible to registered 
stockholders, the details of which can be found in https://www.apcaragorn.net/investor-
relations/annual-stockholders-meeting/.  The Company will record in video the proceedings and 
maintain a copy with the office of the Corporate Secretary. 

 
Stockholders as of Record Date must inform the Corporate Secretary of their intention to participate 
in the meeting via remote communication and to vote in absentia by registering at 
apc governance@bellecorp.com on or before June 23, 2025 (Monday), subject to the verification and 
validation by the Corporate Secretary. Stockholders who will participate through remote 
communication or in absentia shall be deemed present for purposes of quorum for the meeting. 

 
The Board of Directors adopted a resolution allowing stockholders to participate, and to exercise their 
right to vote, via remote communication or in absentia. Voting will be made through a secure online 
voting facility accessible only to verified stockholders to protect the integrity and secrecy of votes 
cast. 

 

 
Statement (see attached ). 
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(d) Security ownership of certain record and beneficial owners and management. 
 

1. Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners 
 

The persons or groups identified in the table below are known to the Company as directly or 
indirectly the record or beneficial owners of more than five percent (5%) of the Company
securities as of April 30, 2025: 
 

Title of 
Class 

Name and address of 
Record Owner and 
Relationship with 
Issuer 

Name of 
beneficial Owner 
and Relationship 
with Record 
Owner 

Citizenship No. of Shares 
Held 

Percent 
Held 

Common PCD Nominee Corp.  
(Filipino) 
 
G/F Makati Stock 
Exchange, Ayala Ave. 
Makati City 
 

Belle Corporation2 Filipino 3,500,000,000 46.641% 

Common 
 
 
 
 
 

PCD Nominee Corp. 1 

(Filipino) 
 
G/F Makati Stock 
Exchange, Ayala Ave. 
Makati City 

Various3 

 
 
 
 

Filipino 
 
 
 
 
 

1,907,485,156  
 
 
 
 
 
 

25.419% 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Common PCD Nominee Corp. 1 

(Non-Filipino) 
 
G/F Makati Stock 
Exchange, Ayala Ave. 
Makati City 

Various3 Non-
Filipino 

417,559,509 
 

5.564% 

 

1 -owned subsidiary of Philippine Central 
 name of 

PCDNC are  participants who hold the shares in their own behalf or in behalf of their 
clients. The PCD is prohibited from voting these shares; instead the participants have the power 
to decide how the PCD shares in APC Group, Inc. are to be voted. 

 
2 Belle Corporation is an affiliate of APC Group Inc. The shares held by Belle 
Corporation are currently lodged under BDO Securities Corporation, which is a stock brokerage 
firm as well as a trading participant in the Philippine Depository and Trust Corporation. Belle 
shares shall be voted or disposed of by the persons who shall be duly authorized by Belle for the 
purpose. The natural person/s that has/have the power to vote on the shares of Belle shall be 
determined upon the submission of its proxy form to the Company, which is not later than three 
(3) business days before the date of the meeting. 

 
3 The Company is not aware of other single participant who has beneficial ownership of more 

 
 

2. Security Ownership of Management 
 

The following table shows the shareholdings beneficially held by the directors and officers of the 
Company as of April 30, 2025: 
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Armin Antonio B. Raquel Santos 
Non- Executive Director 
Date of First Election: June 28, 2024 
Chairman: Risk Oversight Committee 
Member, Audit Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and Related Party Transactions Committee 
 
Mr. Raquel Santos, 57, Filipino, is a Director of the Company. He is the President and Chief Executive Officer of 
Belle Corporation, Premium Leisure Corp. and its subsidiaries PremiumLeisure and Amusement, Inc., and Pacific 
Online Systems Corporation. He is a Director of Pinoy Lotto Technologies Corporation, HHR Philippines, Inc., 
Sagittarius Mines, Inc., Tagaytay Highlands International Gold Club, Inc., Manila Golf and Country Club, and 
member of the Board of Trustees of Meralco Resorts (Philippines) Foundation Corporation. Formerly, he was Chief 
Finance Officer of Aboitizland, Inc., Cebu Industrial Park, Inc. and Mactan Economic Zone II and First Philippine 
Electric Company. He was also a former Governor of Board of Investments (BOI), served as Assistant Secretary 
with the Department of Trade and Industry (DTI), Vice Chairman and CEO of Philippine Retirement Authority 
(PRA), Executive Vice President of Philippine International Trading Corporation (PITC), and Deputy Administrator 
of Subic Bay Metropolitan Authority (SBMA). His experience includes stints with multinational companies; 
Securities 2000 Inc. (Singapore Technologies Group) and First Chicago Trust Company of New York. 
 
Mr. Raquel Santos holds a Master of Arts in Liberal Studies from Dartmouth College, U.S.A. and Bachelor of 
Science in Business Administration Major in Finance from Iona College, U.S.A. 
 
 
Edmundo L. Tan 
Non-Executive Director 
Date of First Election: Year 2000 
Member, Compensation and Remuneration Committee 
 
Atty. Tan, 79, Filipino, is a Director of the Company from 2000 up to the present and as Corporate Secretary from 
2000 until 2016. He serves as Director of Philippine Global Communications, Inc. from 2000 up to the present and 
as Corporate Secretary from 2000 until 2010. He is a director of Aragorn Power and Energy Corporation from 2005 
up to the present and as Corporate Secretary from 2005 up to 2012. He is currently a Director of PRC MAGMA 
Resources, Inc. (2010 up to the present). He is a director of OLC Holdings, Inc. from July 2012 up to the present. 
He was elected as director of Sagittarius Mines, Inc. in March 2016. On 12 December 2019 he was elected Director 
of Concrete Aggregates Corporation. He serves as Corporate Secretary of BDO Unibank, Inc. from July 2007 up to 
the present and BDO Private Bank from February 2012 up to the present. He was formerly a Director of BDO 
Leasing & Finance, Inc. and now serves as Adviser of the Board.  
 
He was a co-founder and was elected President of Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, Inc. (PDRCI) in July 2017.  
 
Atty. Tan is the Managing Partner of Tan, Acut Lopez & Pison Law Offices (1993 up to present). He was formerly 
Senior Partner in Ponce Enrile Cayetano Reyes & Manalastas Law Offices, a Partner in Angara Abello Concepcion, 
Regala & Cruz Law Offices, and an Associate in Cruz Villarin Ongkiko Academia & Durian Law Offices.  
 
He graduated from De La Salle College with a degree in Bachelor of Arts. He graduated from the University of the 

 
 
 
Virginia A. Yap 
Non-Executive Director 
Date of First Election: June 2012 
Member, Executive Committee, and Compensation and Remuneration Committee 
 
Ms. Yap, 73, Filipino, is a Director of the Company.  Ms. Yap holds key positions in SM investments Corporation 
as a Senior Vice President  Office of the Chairman Emeritus and Securities Department. She was also a Non-
Executive Director of Belle Corporation until May 31, 2024.  
 
She holds a Bachelor of Science in Commerce (Major in Accounting) degree from the University of Mindanao. 
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Independent Directors 
 

The following are brief descriptions of the business experiences over the past five (5) years of the incumbent 
independent directors of the Company: 

 
 

Rafael M. Alunan III 
Lead Independent Director 
Non-Executive Director 
Date of First Election: August 2020  
Chairman, Audit Committee 
Member, Corporate Governance, Risk Oversight Committee, and Related Party Transactions Committee 
 
Mr. Alunan, 76, Filipino, is an Independent Director of the Company who was elected on August 10, 2020. He also 
sits as an independent director with the position of Vice-Chairman of Pepsi Cola Products (Philippines), Inc.; and 
chairs the Audit Committees of both companies. He was recently elected as President of the Philippine Taekwondo 
Association. Mr. Alunan is the immediate past Chairman of the Philippine Council for Foreign Relations (PCFR) 
and the Harvard Kennedy School Alumni Association of the Philippines Inc. (HKSAAPI). He is the President-elect 
of the Rotary Club of Manila for RY2023-2024. He also sits on the board of the Spirit of EDSA Foundation; founded 
One Philippines Party List; and serves as Senior Adviser of Kaltimex Energy Phils.  
 
Mr. Alunan is an Eminent Fellow of the Development Academy of the Philippines (DAP); and Fellow of the Institute 
of Corporate Directors (ICD) and Institute for Solidarity in Asia (ISA). He co-

 
Fraternal Order of Eagles of the Philippines; and Zeta Phi Omega fraternity. He holds the rank of Colonel in the 
Armed Forces of the Philippines, and commanded the 131st Infantry Division (Standby Reserve) and the 9th 
Infantry Division (Ready Reserve) of the Philippine Army. He is an adopted member of Philippine Military 
Academy Marangal Class of 1974, PCSpecial Action Force, Special Forces Regiment (Airborne) and First Scout 
Ranger Regiment.  
 
Mr. Alunan obtained his double degree in Business Administration and History-Political Science from De La Salle 

-Senior Executive Program; 

Course.   
 
Mr. Alunan served in the Cabinets of Presidents Corazon C. Aquino and Fidel V. Ramos as Secretary of Tourism 
and Secretary of the Interior and Local Government, respectively. 
 
 
Jerry C. Tiu 
Independent Director 
Date of First Election: July 22, 2021 
Chairman: Corporate Governance Committee and Related Party Transactions Committee 
Member: Audit Committee, Risk Oversight Committee 
 
Mr. Tiu, 68, Filipino, is an Independent Director of APC Group, Inc. He is an Independent Adviser to the Board of 
Premium Leisure Corp. He is a Director and the President of Tagaytay Highlands Community Condominium 

Highlands 
International Golf Club, Inc., The Country Club at Tagaytay Highlands, Inc., Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc., 
and The Spa & Lodge at Tagaytay Highlands, Inc. He was a former Director of the Manila Polo Club. 
  
Mr. Tiu holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce (Major in Marketing) from the University of British 
Columbia. 
 
 
Nomination of Regular and Independent Directors for 2024-2025 
 

Mr. Rafael M. Alunan III and Mr. Jerry C. Tiu were elected as Independent Directors during June 28, 2024 Annual 
 

 
Currently, no independent director has exceeded the cumulative term of nine (9) years per SEC Memorandum 
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Circular No. 4, Series of 2017. 
 
The nomination, pre-screening and election of independent directors were made in compliance with the 

the Nomination and Election of Independent 
By-Laws. 
 
The Corporate Governance Committee has endorsed the nominations for election of the following as regular 
and independent directors of the Company for 2025-2026: 
 
 
  Regular Directors 

1. Willy N. Ocier 
2. Ian Jason R. Aguirre 
3. Edmundo L. Tan 
4. Virginia A. Yap 
5. Armin Antonio B. Raquel Santos  
 
 
Independent Directors 
1. Rafael M. Alunan III 
2. Jerry C. Tiu 

 
 
The Corporate Governance Committee constituted by the  Board of Directors, indorsed the nomination by 
Maritoni Z. Liwanag and Martin Israel L. Pison in favor of Mr. Rafael M. Alunan III and Mr. Jerry C. Tiu, 
respectively, for re-election as Independent Directors. Ms. Liwanag and Mr. Pison are not related to Mr. Alunan 
and Mr. Tiu, respectively. 
 
The Corporate Governance Committee, composed of Mr. Jerry C. Tiu, Mr. Rafael M. Alunan III and Mr. Armin 
Antonio B. Raquel Santos has determined that the nominees for Independent Director possess all the qualifications 
and has n
Governance and Rule 38 of the Implementing Rules of the Securities Regulation Code (SRC). 
 

 
Procedure for the Nomination of Directors 
 
The procedure for the nomination of directors is as follows: 

 
1. Nomination of directors shall be conducted by the Corporate Governance Committee or such other committee 

of the Board of Directors tasked to review and evaluate nominations for election to the Board of Directors 
prior to a stockholders' meeting.  

 
2. All nominations shall be submitted to the Corporate Governance Committee by any stockholder of record to 

assess and evaluate the qualifications of the nominees.  
 

3. All recommendations for the nomination of independent directors shall be signed by the nominating 
stockholders together with the acceptance and conformity by the would-be nominees. 

 
4. After the nomination, the Corporate Governance Committee shall prepare a List of Candidates which shall 

contain all the information about all the nominees for election as members of the Board of Directors, which 
list shall be made available to the SEC and to all stockholders through the filing and distribution of the 
Information Statement or Proxy Statement, or in such other reports as the Corporation will be required to 
submit to the SEC.  

 
5. The name of the person or group of persons who recommended the nomination of the independent director(s) 

shall be identified in such report including any relationship with the nominee.  
 

6. Only nominees whose names appear on the List of Candidates shall be eligible for election as directors. No 
other nominations for election as director shall be entertained after the List of Candidates shall have been 
prepared and finalized. No further nominations for election as director shall be entertained or allowed on the 
floor during the actual annual stockholders' meeting. 
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Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings 
 

As of the date of this information statement, the Company is not aware of any of the following events wherein any 
of its directors, nominees for election as director, executive officers, underwriter or control person were involved 
during the past five (5) years up to date of the Information Statement: 
 

(a) Any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which such person was a general partner or 
executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two years prior to that time. 

(b) Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or being subject to a 
pending criminal proceeding. 

(c) Any order, judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, 
suspending or otherwise limiting the involvement of any of the above persons in any type of business, 
securities, commodities or banking activities; and, 

(d) Any finding by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in civil action), the SEC or 
comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or other organized trading market or self-
regulatory organization, to have violated a securities or commodities law or regulation and the 
judgment has not been reversed, suspended or vacated. 

 

Parent of Registrant and Basis of Control 
 

 

 

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 
 

No director or executive officers or any member of their immediate family has, during the last two years, had a direct 
or indirect, material interest in a transaction or proposed transaction to which the Company was a party. 
 
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant 
influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. This includes: (a) individuals owning, 
directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries; (b) associates; (c) individuals owning, directly or 
indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, 
key management personnel, including directors and officers of the Company and close members of the family of 
any such individual; and (d) affiliate, which is a party that, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, 
control, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Company. Related party transactions pertain to the 
availment of noninterest-bearing advances from a stockholder and other related parties. 
 
The related party transactions are described in Note 16 (Related Party Transactions) of the Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 
 
 
Disagreement with Director 
 

No director has resigned nor declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors because of a disagreement 

 Meeting. 
 
 
Item 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers 
 
Each director is entitled to a transportation allowance of P5,000 per board meeting attended to cover transportation 
expenses. 
 
The aggregate compensation paid or incurred during the last two fiscal years and estimated to be paid in the ensuing 
fiscal year to the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finance Officer of the Company are as follows: 
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Warrants and Options Outstanding 
 
None. All outstanding options of all executive officers and directors expired in 1999. 
 
 
No Action on Compensation Plans 
 

No action will be taken on the Registrant's Compensation Plans. 
 
 

Item 7. Independent Public Accountants 
 

5. The 
recommendation to appoint a new external auditor is in line with the Com
practices as stated in its Manual on Corporate Governance, that the external auditor or the handling partner shall be 

onalize expenditures 
and promote cost reduction measures. 
 

a. The Comp 4 and 2023 was RT & Co. with Ms. Belinda Fernando as the 
partner-in-charge. 
 

b. Representatives of RT & Co. are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting to respond to appropriate 
questions and will be given the opportunity to make a statement if they so desire. 

 
c. There was no event in 2024 and 2023 where RT & Co. had any disagreement with regard to any matter 

relating to accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or 
procedure. 

 
d. In compliance with SRC Rule 68 3 (b) (iv), the assignment of RT &  engagement partner for the 

Company shall not exceed five (5) consecutive years. 
 

e. The aggregate fees paid by the Company for professional services rendered by the external auditor for 
the audit of financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows: 

 
2024 P=250,000 
2023   250,000 

 
f. There were no other assurance and related services by the external auditor that are reasonably related to 

the performance of the audit or review of the registrant's financial statements. 
 

g. The Audit Committee, composed of Mr. Rafael M. Alunan III (Chairman), Mr. Jerry C. Tiu and Mr.  
Armin Antonio B. Raquel Santos, recommends to the Board of Directors the appointment of the 

recommendation. The Executive Committee approves the audit fees as recommended by the 
Management. 

 
h. 

external auditor of fiscal year 2024 and the Board approved and endorses the appointment for 
 approval. 

 
 
Item 8. Compensation Plans 
 
No action is to be taken with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash compensation may be paid or 
distributed. 
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C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES 
 
 

Item 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange 
 

or issuance of any securities. 
 
 

Item 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities 
 

No action will be presented for 

securities of another class. 
 
 

Item 11. Financial and Other Matters 
 

The Audited Financial Statements of the Company and the Management Report, incorporating 
Discussion & Analysis, is attached as Annex  
 
Representatives of the external auditor, RT & Co., are expected to be present at the annual meeting, and they will have 
the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be available to respond to appropriate 
questions from the shareholders. The Company has had no material disagreement with RT & Co. on any matter of 

 statements. 
 
 

Item 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters 
 

meeting which involves any mergers, 
consolidation, acquisition and other similar transactions. 
 
 
Item 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property 
 

tion or 
disposition of property of the Company. 
 
 
Item 14. Restatement of Accounts 
 

t. 
 
D. OTHER MATTERS 

 
 
Item 15. Action with Respect to Reports 
 
There is no action to be taken with respect to any report of the Company or of its directors, officers or committees, 
except for the approval of the minutes of the previous annual meeting of the Company. 
 
At the annual meeting on June 26, 2025, shareholders will be asked to approve and ratify the following: 

 
1. Minutes of the Annual  Meeting (ASM) held on June 28, 2024 as appended to this Information 

minutes of the said ASM was posted on the website: 
https://www.apcaragorn.net/wp-content/uploads/APC-28-June-2024-Minutes-of-Stockholders-Meeting-
DRAFT.pdf within 24 hours from adjournment of the meeting. This includes the following: 

 
a. Voting procedure used and the tabulation for each agenda item during the June 28, 2024 and the 

engagement of Ms. Cristina C. Naguit as third-party validator of votes during the said meeting; 
 
b. Opportunities presented to the shareholders to participate by asking questions; questions and responses 
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have been included in the minutes of the meeting; 
 
c. List of directors and officers who attended the meeting, as well as description of the stockholders who 

 
 

The office of the Corporate Secretary has in its full custody the list and names of the stockholders who 
participated in the June 28, 2024 ASM. 

 
2. All general acts of the Board of Directors, Board Committees and Management during their term of office, 

which refer to all actions, proceedings and contracts entered into, as well as resolutions made including 
approvals of significant related party transactions of the Board, Board Committees and Management from 
the June 28, 2024 ASM to the date of this meeting. 

ratification are acts of the Board, its Committees and Management for the 
previous year up to the date of the annual meeting which were entered into or made in the ordinary course of 
business such as but not limited to approval of projects, Treasury matters related to opening of accounts and 
transactions with banks and appointment of signatories and amendments thereof. The significant acts or 
transactions of which are covered by appropriate disclosures with the SEC and PSE are as follows: 

 
Date Title 

March 01, 2024 2023 Audited Financial Statement 

May 07, 2024  

June 28, 2024  

June 28, 2024 Results of Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 

3. 2024 
together with this Information Statement. Accordingly, approval of the Annual Report will constitute 
approval and ratification of the acts of Management stated in the Management Report during the period 
covered thereby. 

 
Ms. Cristina Castro Naguit, a Certified Public Accountant, shall be present during the June 26, 2025 Annual 

 
 

There are no other matters that would require approval of the stockholders. 
 
For the period ended December 31, 2024, there were no self-dealings or related party transactions by any director 
which require disclosure. 
 
There is likewise no material information on the current stockholders and their voting rights requiring disclosure. 
 

 
Item 16. Matters Not Required to be submitted 
 
No action is to be taken with respect to any matter which is not required to be submitted to a vote of security holders. 
 
 
Item 17. Other Proposed Actions 
 
Other than the matters indicated in the Notice and Agenda included in this Information Statement, there are no other 
actions proposed to be taken at the annual meeting. 
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Item 18. Voting Procedures

Vote required for approval

Matters subject to stockholder approval, except in cases where the law provides otherwise, shall be decided by the
plurality vote of stockholders present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote, a quorum being present in such 
meeting. Each stockholder entitled to vote may cast the vote to which the number of shares he owns entitles him.

of the stockholders for approval. For election of directors, the stockholders are entitled to cumulate their votes.

Methods by which votes will be casted and counted

The By-Laws does not prescribe a specific manner of voting by stockholders. For
ng, the Board of Directors approved a resolution allowing stockholders to participate in the 

meeting via remote communication and to vote in absentia.

Stockholders as of Record Date who have successfully registered their intention to participate in the annual meeting
via remote communication and to vote in absentia, duly verified and validated by the Company, shall be provided 
with unique log-in credentials to securely access the voting portal.

Stockholders and proxy holders can then cast their votes on specific matters for approval, including the election of 
directors. Votes will then be automatically tabulated and counted at the close of voting for each agenda item during 
the meeting.

The Corporate Secretary is tasked and authorized to validate, count and tabulate votes by stockholders. For this 

validate votes from stockholders.

-laws, duly accomplished proxy forms must be submitted to the Corporate Secretary 
at least three (3) business days prior the meeting. Duly signed proxy forms should therefore be submitted no later
than June 23, 2025 at the Office of the Corporate Secretary at the 23rd Floor, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, East
Tower Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City for validation. A sample format of the proxy form is here attached 

website.

The Corporate Secretary will lead the validation of transfer agent,
and Ms. Naguit as independent validator and tabulator of votes. Any questions and issues relating to the validity and
sufficiency of proxies, both as to form and substance, shall be resolved by the Corporate Secretary. The Corporate 

on the stockholders, and those not settled at such forum shall be
deemed waived and may no longer be raised during the meeting.

The detailed guidelines for 

Statement.
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

APC GROUP, INC.
BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

BACKGROUND

APC Group, Inc. (the Parent Company or APC) and subsidiaries (the Group) were incorporated in the Philippines 
and are registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). The Parent Company was 
incorporated on October 15, 1993 and was originally organized to engage in the oil and gas exploration and 
development.

On April 30, 1997, the SEC approved the change in the primary purpose of the Parent Company to that of a holding 
hares of stock are publicly traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

The Parent Company has the following subsidiaries:

The registered office address of the Parent Company is G/F MyTown New York Bldg., General E. Jacinto St. cor. 
Capas St., Brgy. Guadalupe Nuevo, Makati City.

Subsidiaries and Status of Operations

The following is the status of operations of the Group:

a. Aragorn Power and Energy Corporation (APEC)

APEC was established to engage in renewable energy resource exploration, development and
utilization

Kalinga Geothermal Project

In 2008, APEC was granted a Geothermal Service Contract (GSC) by the Republic of the
Philippines, through the Department of Energy (DOE), for the exploration, development and
exploitation of geothermal resources covering a total area of 26,139 hectares located in the
Province
a Geothermal Renewable Service Contract (GRESC) in March 2010 to avail of the incentives
provided under the Renewable Energy Act of 2008. GRESC No. 2010-03-24 has a term of not
exceeding 25 years (including the used term under the GSC) and renewable for not more than 25
years. The total period from pre-development stage to the development/commercial stage shall
not exceed 50 years.

In November 2010, APEC and its partner Guidance Management Corporation (GMC) formed a
partnership with AllFirst Kalinga Ltd. (AKL, formerly Chevron Kalinga Ltd.) and signed a Farm-
out Agreement (FOA) which gives APEC and GMC the option to take an equity position of up to
40% in KGP. The parties also signed a Joint Operating Agreement where AKL will be responsible
for the exploration, development and operation of the steam field and power activities. As at
December 31, 2024 and 2023, APEC and GMC each has 5% participation as provided under the
FOA.

Company
Nature of 
Business Date of Incorporation

Percentage of 
Ownership

Aragorn Power and Energy Corporation (APEC) Energy January 6, 2005 97.6%
PRC-Magma Energy Resources Inc. (PRC - Magma)* Energy June 10, 2009 85%
APC Cement Corporation (APC Cement) Manufacturing November 15, 1994 100%
APC Energy Resources, Inc. (APCERI) Mining January 31, 2005 100%
APC Mining Corporation (APC Mining)
*A direct subsidiary of APEC

Mining March 17, 2005 83.3%
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On August 14, 2018, pursuant to Executive Order No. 30, the Energy Investment Coordinating 
Council (EICC), through the DOE, granted KGP a Certificate of Energy Project of National 
Significance (CEPNS) for Pre-Development Phase. The CEPNS entitles KGP to all the rights and 
privileges provided for under Executive Order No. 30 series 2017. 

On September 18, 2018, AKL assigned its Farm-out interest, including all associated rights and 
obligations under the FOA, in favor of its affiliate, Allfirst Kalinga Holdings, Inc. (AKHI). 

In 2019, KGP completed securing all the remaining necessary permits and maintained and 
complied with its commitments. KGP has also engaged contractors and suppliers necessary for 
the construction of access roads, well pads, and well drilling activities. With the completion of 
the negotiation for right-of-way, remaining regulatory permits, as well as the engagement of the 
needed contractors and suppliers, KGP has completed the construction of well pads and access 
roads, and continues to implement geo-hazard mitigation measures. 

On October 12, 2019, the KGP commenced drilling of the PAS-02 exploration well and ended 
drilling operations on April 21, 2020 after reaching a depth of 4,483 ft. (1,366 m MD) and being 
unable to drill further. The results of the drilling still show promise, with very encouraging 
commercial temperatures at 568°F (298°C) despite tight permeability. 

On March 12, 2021, KGP re-commenced its geology, geochemical, and geophysical surveys (3G) 
which ended on June 7, 2021. After the evaluation and study, the results of the 3G established the 
presence of multiple independent systems within the KGP. Three potentially exploitable systems 
have been discovered located in the areas of Liwang, Caigutan, and Dananao. All three systems 
are located within the existing contract area. 

On June 5, 2023, the GRESC was converted into GSC No. 2023-04-073 as a result of the request 
to apply for a new investment on Southwest Kalinga, amending the contract area of GRESC No. 
2010- 03-024. This amended GSC has a pre-development and development term until July 1, 
2033 and renewable for not more than 25 years. 

Multiple extensions were secured for the exploration period of KGP with the latest of which is 
valid until May 28, 2026, upon the conversion of the GSC. The approval of the exploration period 
for GSC No. 2023-04-73 will lead to the continuation of exploration activities and eventual 
resumption of drilling operations. 

On July 7, 2023, a new GSC (GSC No. 2023-07-074) was awarded to APEC for the Southwest 
Kalinga Geothermal Power Project (SWKGPP) which covers the newly discovered potentially 
exploitable systems of Caigutan and Dananao. This GSC has a pre-development and development 
contract period of 25 years with a possible extension of another 25 years. The total period from 
pre-development stage to the development / commercial stage shall not exceed 50 years. The 
exploration period of this GSC shall be valid for 7 years or until July 7, 2030. 

With the newly discovered potential systems and newly awarded GSC, APEC and its partners 
intend to continue exploration activities through further 3G surveys and eventually start 
exploratory and appraisal drilling. To date, KGP has been engaging with communities within the 
contract area. 

KGP has maintained full engagement with the host LGUs and Communities. As at February 27, 
2025, the consent of nine (9) out of eleven (11) ancestral domains has been secured covering 85% 
of the GSC area. In addition, all of the Community Development (CD) Projects have been fully 
completed and turned over to the respective community beneficiaries. 

KGP continues to provide scholarship grants and educational assistance to deserving youths from 
the eight (8) ancestral domains within its contract area. As at school year 2023-2024, KGP has 
already extended scholarships to 431 grantees and has produced 348 graduates in various courses, 
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which includes 62 licensed professionals, scholarship accounts for 29% of CD Projects 
Expenditures. Five (5) scholar graduates in engineering and geology have been hired for the 
Project.  

KGP involves the development of steam fields that can generate around 120 megawatts (MW) of 
new capacity, providing an additional source of clean, indigenous and reliable baseload power to 
the Luzon grid. A 120 MW geothermal project will approximately cost more than US$300.0 
million. 

On January 15, 2020 and March 2, 2018, APEC contributed US$2.1 million (P=106.5 million) and 
US$1.0 million (P=51.2 million), respectively, to AKHI equivalent to the 5% share of the appraisal 
drilling budget which includes construction of general facilities, roads, and pads, rig mobilization 
and demobilization, well drilling, testing, resource feasibility study, other exploration capital 
(salaries and wages) and corporate social responsibility. 

b. APC Energy Resources Inc. (APC Energy) 

APC Energy was established to engage in exploration, development and utilization of renewable 
energy resources. APC Energy stopped its operations when its Coal Operating Contracts with the DOE 
in both Masbate and Isabela were terminated in 2013 and 2015, respectively.  

c. APC Mining Corporation (APC Mining) 

APC Mining was organized to engage in mining, processing, manufacturing, buying and selling of all 
kinds of ores, metals and minerals. It was granted a minig permit for the exploration of chromite, 
copper and nickel deposits in Alubijid, Misamis Oriental. In 2013, APC Mining gave up its exploration 
permit because the area has low prospect for chromite, copper and nickel. 

d. APC Cement Corporation (APC Cement) 

APC Cement was incorporated in November 1994 to engage in the manufacture of cement.  As at 
December 31, 2024, APC Cement is still in the pre-operating stage. 

e. PRC-Magma Energy Resources, Inc. (PRC Magma) 

PRC Magma was established to engage in the business of exploration, development, and processing 
of renewable and non-renewable energy resources, including but not limited to wind power, solar 
power, hydropower, biofuels, biomass, and coal; exploration, mining and processing of metalliferous 
and non-metalliferous mineral and ore resources; trading and supply of energy and mineral resources; 
and generation of electric power using energy resources. In 2010, PRC-Magma was awarded a GRESC 
for Bontoc Mainit-Sadanga in Mountain Province and Buguias-Tinoc in Benguet and Ifugao 
Provinces. In 2015, the service contracts were terminated due to the delays in the implementation of 
the approved work program and failure to make any discovery before the end of the fifth (5th) Contract 
Year. 

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Group is still evaluating new business opportunities for its non-operating 
subsidiaries. 

Employees 

APC Group Inc. had a total of 2 employees as of December 31, 2024. 
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MARKET INFORMATION 
 

Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. 
 

The high and low sales prices for each 
quoted on the Philippine Stock Exchange are as follows: 

 
   2025 2024  2023 
 High Low High Low High Low 

First Quarter 0.189 0.159 0.270 0.204 0.310 0.202 
Second Quarter - - 0.265 0.205 0.240 0.211 
Third Quarter - - 0.221 0.180 0.305 0.224 
Fourth Quarter - - 0.207 0.183 0.246 0.211 

 
The price information as of the close of the latest practicable trading date, April 30, 2025, is Php0.179. 

 
As of April 30, 2025, market capitalization on 7,504,203,997 outstanding shares in the PSE 
amounted to P1,343,252,515 based on the closing price of P0.179. 

 
 

SECURITY HOLDERS 
 
As of April 30, 2025, Registrant had 588 shareholders of common equity. On the said date, the following were the 
Top 20 registered shareholders of the common equity of the Company: 

 
APC GROUP INC.     
LIST OF TOP 100 STOCKHOLDERS     

AS OF APRIL 30, 2025    
     

RANK NAME TOTAL SHARES 
PERCENTAGE 

(%) 

     
1 PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION  5,825,044,665 77.6238  

           Filipino    -  5,407,485,156     

      Non-Filipino -     417,559,509     
2 DOMINION EQUITIES, INC.   340,000,000 4.5308  
3 COMPACT HOLDINGS INC.   281,000,000 3.7446  
4 INTEGRATED HOLDINGS INC.   180,000,000 2.3987  
5 ELITE HOLDINGS INC.   168,500,000 2.2454  
6 PARALLAX RESOURCES, INC.   165,722,334 2.2084  
7 EQUINOX INTERNATIONAL RESOURCES CORPORATION   100,000,000 1.3326  
8 RICHOLD INVESTOR CORP.   100,000,000 1.3326  
9 EASTERN SEC. DEVT. CORP.   80,000,000 1.0661  
10 GILT-EDGED PROPERTIES,INC   68,616,665 0.9144  
11 HEADLAND HOLDINGS CORP.   55,500,000 0.7396  
12 EASTERN SEC. DEV. CORP.   23,869,114 0.3181  
13 LIM SIEW KIM   18,000,000 0.2399  
14 TAK CHANG INVESTMENTS CO. LTD.  18,000,000 0.2399  
15 COSCOLLUELA, WILLIAM V.   10,000,000 0.1333  
16 REYES, VICENTE O. ITF: PETER PAUL PHIL. COR  8,332,000 0.1110  
17 DHARMALA SEC. (PHILS),INC   5,050,000 0.0673  
18 SINGSON, EVELYN R. ITF: GILT-EDGED PROPERTIE  3,933,333 0.0524  
19 CORPORATE INV. PHILS.,INC   3,000,000 0.0400  
20 SINGSON, EVELYN R. ITF: JAIME F. SINGSON  3,000,000 0.0400  

 
 

DIVIDENDS 
 
Dividends shall be declared only from the surplus profit and shall be payable at such time and in such manner and 
in such amounts as the Board of Directors shall determine. No dividends shall be declared which would impair the 

dividends, aside from its retained earnings available for such. 
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The Company has not declared any dividends on common stock since the time it was incorporated. The Company 
is not in a position to declare cash dividends because of its deficit. 
 
 
RECENT SALE OF UNREGISTERED OR EXEMPT SECURITIES 
 
There was no recent sale of unregistered or exempt securities. 
 
 
FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION 
 
 
Financial Statements 
 
The audited Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules for the year 2024 are filed as part of 
this Form 20-IS. 
 
 
Changes in and Disagreement with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures 
 
No principal accountant or independent accountants of the registrant has resigned, was dismissed or has ceased to 
perform services during the two (2) most recent fiscal years or any subsequent interim period. 
 
There have been no disagreements with any accountant or any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial 
statement disclosure or auditing scope of procedure. 
 
 
External Audit Fees and Services 

 
1. The aggregate audit fees paid by the Company for professional services (excluding Value Added Tax) 

P250,000 in 2024 and P250,000 in 2023, respectively. 
 

2. No other assurance and related services were rendered in 2024 and 2023. 
 
3. No tax services were rendered by the external auditor in 2024 and 2023. 
 

4. There were no other fees paid to the external auditor in 2024 and 2023. 
 
5. The audit committee approved the policies and procedures of the above services. The Board of Directors has 

established an audit committee to provide oversight of the external audit function and review of the internal 
audit function of the company. 

The Audit Committee has the responsibility to recommend an external auditor to be selected and appointed by the 
 

It reviews the audit coverage of the External Auditors and deliberates on their audit report prior to endorsement to 
the Board of Directors and presented to the stockholders for approval. 





34 
 

 Investment property pertains to land owned by the Parent Company located in Ginatillan, Cebu. There is 
no change in the value of remaining properties. 

 
Liabilities  

Total liabilities as at December 31, 2024 of the Group amounted to P=112.3 million, decreased by 3% or P=3.3 million 
versus liabilities as at December 31, 202
obligation due to employee retirement. 
  
 
Equity 

capital stock from P=1 par value per share to P=
stockholders on September 27, 2017.   

On February 20, 2020, the SEC approved the decrease in the authorized capital stock of the Parent Company from 
P=20,000.0 million divided into 14,000.0 million common shares and 6,000.0 million preferred shares at P=1.00 a 
share to P=200.0 million divided into 14,000.0 million common shares and 6,000.0 million preferred shares both at 
P=0.01 par value a share. 

On February 20, 2020, the SEC approved the equity restructuring of the Parent Company primarily to write-off the 
31, 2018 amounting to P=7,793.8 million against the additional paid in 

capital of P=7,938.1 million. Consequently, the remaining additional paid in capital of  P=144.3 million cannot is not 
allowed to be applied for future losses that may be incurred by the Parent Company without prior approval of the 
SEC. 

This resulted in the following as at December 31, 2020: 

- P=6,388.1 million to P=63.9 million 
- decrease in APIC from P=1,613.9 million to P=144.3 million 
- decrease in deficit from P=7,801.9 million to P=13.9 million 

P=153.4 million in 2023 to P=150.6 million in 2024 due to the 
net loss obtained in 2024 amounting to P=5.4 million, offset by other comprehensive gains recognized in 2024 
amounting to P=2.6 million. 

The Group does not foresee any cash flow problems during the next twelve months. The Group has enough cash to 
meet cash requirements in 2025. 

There were no off-balance sheet transactions. 
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Costs and Expenses 

The Group recorded P=6.4 million in costs and expenses for the year, 25% lower than the P=8.4 million in 2023 due 
to absence of legal fees attributed to the proceeds from the settlement of a long-outstanding claim against GSIS. 

 
Other Income (Loss) 

Other income of the Group in 2022 pertains to the P=5.3 million gain in the sale of parcel of land with a carrying 
amount of P=2.9 million for P=8.2 million. There is no revaluation in 2023 and 2022. 

 
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

Other comprehensive income of the Group represents fair value changes on financial assets at FVOCI and 
remeasurement losses on retirement liability. In 2024, there is P=1.4 million unrealized gain on fair value changes of 
financial assets at FVOCI and P=1.2 million remeasurement gain on retirement liability. Total other comprehensive 
gain for the year is at P=2.6 which is P= P=1.0 million. 

As of December 31, 2024, except for what have been mentioned in the preceding, there were no material events or 
uncertainties known to management that had a material impact on past performance, or that would have a material 
impact on the future operations, in respect of the following: 

 Known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that would have a material impact on the 
Group; 

 Material commitments for capital expenditures that are reasonably expected to have a material impact on 
the Group's short-term or long-term liquidity; 

 Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a material 
favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from continuing operations; 

 Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the Group, including any 
default or acceleration of an obligation.  

 All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), 
and other relationships of the Group with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the 
reporting period 

 Any significant elements of income or loss from continuing operation 

 Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Group's continuing operations; 

 Seasonal aspects that had a material impact on the Group's results of operations; and 

 The Group does not foresee any liquidity problem over the next twelve (12) months. 
 
 

PLAN OF OPERATION 
 
The Group will focus on the following directions in the next 12 months:  

1. Continue with the development of its geothermal resources. Pursue the exploration work program for the 
Kalinga project. 

2. Seek other renewable energy development investment opportunities. 
3. Look into other revenue opportunities for the Group. 
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 
Management uses the following key performance indicators to evaluate the performance of the Group. Except for 
Net Income, these key performance indicators are not measurements in accordance with Philippine Financial 
Reporting Standards (PFRS) and should not be considered as an alternative to net income or any other measure of 
performance which are in accordance with PFRS. 
 

 
1. Return on Assets Ratio (ROA). ROA is an indicator of how profitable a company is relative to its total 

assets. ROA gives an idea as to how efficient management is at using its assets to generate earnings and is 
calculated by dividing the Group's annual earnings by its total assets. 

 
2. Return on Equity Ratio (ROE). ROE measures how much profit is generated with the money 

shareholders have invested in the Group. It is expressed as a percentage and calculated by dividing net 
quity. 

 
3. Current Ratio. Current ratio is computed by dividing current assets by current liabilities. This indicates 

the liquidity of the Group in the short term and measures the peso amount of current asset available to 
cover a peso amount of current liability. 

 
4. Debt-to-Equity Ratio (DER). DER gives an indication of the Group

. 

 
5. Asset-to-Equity Ratio (AER). 

equity. This ratio shows the relationship of the total assets of the firm owned by shareholders and an 
indicator of the leverage used to finance the Group. 
 
 

 
The table below shows the comparative figures of the key performance indicators for the period in review. 

 

 

Financial Ratios 

 YTD 
31 December 

2024 

 YTD 
31 December 

2023 

 Return on Assets Ratio (0.02) 0.02 
 Return on Equity Ratio (0.04) 0.03 
 Current Ratio 0.23 0.25 
 Debt to Equity Ratio 0.75 0.75 
 Asset to Equity Ratio 1.75 1.75 
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Discussion on the key performance indicators 

 
Return on Assets Ratio 

 
The  
 
Return on Equity Ratio 

 
The 2024 due to the reported net loss in 2024. 

 
Current Ratio 

 
Current Ratio decreased from 0.25 in 2023 to 0.23 in 2024 due to the decrease in cash from the payment of general 
and administrative expenses. 

 
Debt to Equity Ratio 

 
There is no change in the Group . 

 

Assets to Equity Ratio 

 
There is . 

 
 
Key Variables and other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors 

The Group expects no material commitments for capital expenditures and expected funds in 2024.  To the best of 
s, 

events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on revenues; no significant elements of income or loss that 
did not arise from continuing operations aside from those disclosed in the Notes to the Audited Financial Statements; 
and no seasonal aspects with material effect on results of operations. 

APC Group, Inc. and subsidiaries maintains sufficient cash balances to meet minimum operational requirements, as 
determined by management from time to time. Additional cash requirements are sourced from affiliates. To the best 

liquidity 
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 Financial assets at FVOCI increased by 33% as a result of the movement in stock prices of the shares held 
by the Parent Company as of December 31, 2023.  
 

 Investment property pertains to land owned by the Parent Company located in Ginatillan, Cebu. There is 
no change in the value of remaining properties. 

 
Liabilities  

Total liabilities as at December 31, 2023 of the Group amounted to P=115.6 million, increased by 3% or P=3.3 million 
versus liabilities as at December 31, 2022 mainly due to the legal fees related to the collection from GSIS and 

Parent Company from a third party. 
  
 
Equity 

capital stock from P=1 par value per share to P=
stockholders on September 27, 2017.   

On February 20, 2020, the SEC approved the decrease in the authorized capital stock of the Parent Company from 
P=20,000.0 million divided into 14,000.0 million common shares and 6,000.0 million preferred shares with par value 
of P=1 per share to P=200.0 million divided into 14,000.0 million common shares and 6,000.0 million preferred shares 
both with par value of P=0.01 per share. 

On February 20, 2020, the SEC approved the equity restructuring of the Parent Company to wipe out the deficit as 
of December 31, 2018 amounting to P=7,793.8 million against the additional paid in capital of P=7,938.1 million 
provided that the remaining additional paid in capital of P=144.3 million cannot be applied for future losses that may 
be incurred by the Company without prior approval of the SEC. 

This resulted in the following as at December 31, 2020: 

- decrease in P=6,388.1 million to P=63.9 million 
- decrease in APIC from P=1,613.9 million to P=144.3 million 
- decrease in deficit from P=7,801.9 million to P=13.9 million 

P=147.3 million in 2022 to P=153.4 million in 2023 due to the net 
income obtained in 2023 amounting to P=5.0 million and other comprehensive gains recognized in 2023 amounting 
to P=1.0 million. 

The Group does not foresee any cash flow problems during the next twelve months. The Group has enough cash to 
meet cash requirements in 2024. 

There were no off-balance sheet transactions. 
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Costs and Expenses 

The Group recorded P=8.4 million in costs and expenses for the year, 26% higher than the P=6.7 million in 2022 due 
to legal fees attributed to the proceeds from the settlement of a long-outstanding claim against GSIS. 

 
Other Income (Loss) 

Other income of the Group in 2022 pertains to the P=5.3 million gain in the sale of parcel of land with a carrying 
amount of P=2.9 million for P=8.2 million. There is no revaluation in 2023 and 2022. 

 
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

Other comprehensive income of the Group represents fair value changes on financial assets at FVOCI and 
remeasurement losses on retirement liability. In 2023, there is P=1.0 million unrealized gain on fair value changes of 
financial assets at FVOCI and P=0.04 million remeasurement gain on retirement liability. Total other comprehensive 
gain for the year is at P=1.0 which is P= P=0.5 million. 

As of December 31, 2023, except for what have been mentioned in the preceding, there were no material events or 
uncertainties known to management that had a material impact on past performance, or that would have a material 
impact on the future operations, in respect of the following: 

 Known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that would have a material impact on the 
Group; 

 Material commitments for capital expenditures that are reasonably expected to have a material impact on 
the Group's short-term or long-term liquidity; 

 Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a material 
favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from continuing operations; 

 Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the Group, including any 
default or acceleration of an obligation.  

 All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), 
and other relationships of the Group with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the 
reporting period 

 Any significant elements of income or loss from continuing operation 

 Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Group's continuing operations; 

 Seasonal aspects that had a material impact on the Group's results of operations; and 

 The Group does not foresee any liquidity problem over the next twelve (12) months. 
 

PLAN OF OPERATION 
 
The Group will focus on the following directions in the next 12 months:  

1. Continue with the development of its geothermal resources. Pursue the exploration work program for the 
Kalinga project. 

2. Seek other renewable energy development investment opportunities. 
3. Look into other revenue opportunities for the Group. 
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 
Management uses the following key performance indicators to evaluate the performance of the Group. Except for 
Net Income, these key performance indicators are not measurements in accordance with Philippine Financial 
Reporting Standards (PFRS) and should not be considered as an alternative to net income or any other measure of 
performance which are in accordance with PFRS. 
 

 
1. Return on Assets Ratio (ROA). ROA is an indicator of how profitable a company is relative to its total 

assets. ROA gives an idea as to how efficient management is at using its assets to generate earnings and is 
calculated by dividing the Group's annual earnings by its total assets. 

 
2. Return on Equity Ratio (ROE). ROE measures how much profit is generated with the money 

shareholders have invested in the Group. It is expressed as a percentage and calculated by dividing net 
. 

 
3. Current Ratio. Current ratio is computed by dividing current assets by current liabilities. This indicates 

the liquidity of the Group in the short term and measures the peso amount of current asset available to 
cover a peso amount of current liability. 

 
4. Debt-to-Equity Ratio (DER). DER gives an indication of the Group

. 

 
5. Asset-to-Equity Ratio (AER). 

equity. This ratio shows the relationship of the total assets of the firm owned by shareholders and an 
indicator of the leverage used to finance the Group. 
 

 
The table below shows the comparative figures of the key performance indicators for the period in review. 
 

 

 

Financial Ratios 

 YTD 
31 December 

2023 

 YTD 
31 December 

2022 

 Return on Assets Ratio 0.02 (0.00) 
 Return on Equity Ratio 0.03 (0.01) 
 Current Ratio 0.25 0.18 
 Debt to Equity Ratio 0.75 0.76 
 Asset to Equity Ratio 1.75 1.76 
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Discussion on the key performance indicators 

 
Return on Assets Ratio 

 
The . 
 
Return on Equity Ratio 

 
The 2023 due to the reported net income in 2023. 

 
Current Ratio 

 
Current Ratio increased from 0.18 in 2022 to 0.25 in 2023 due to the increase in cash from the settlement of a long-
outstanding claim against GSIS. 

 
Debt to Equity Ratio 

 
There is a slight decrea
December 31, 2023 due to increase in equity caused by the net income recognized in 2023. 

 

Assets to Equity Ratio 

 
There equity ratio from 1.76 as of December 31, 2022 to 1.75 as of 
December 31, 2023 due to increase in equity caused by the net income recognized in 2023. 
 

 
Key Variables and other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors 

The Group expects no material commitments for capital expenditures and expected funds in 2023. To the best of 

events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on revenues; no significant elements of income or loss that 
did not arise from continuing operations aside from those disclosed in the Notes to the Audited Financial Statements; 
and no seasonal aspects with material effect on results of operations. 

APC Group, Inc. and subsidiaries maintains sufficient cash balances to meet minimum operational requirements, as 
determined by management from time to time. Additional cash requirements are sourced from affiliates. To the best 

ts or uncertainties that will have a material impact on its 
liquidity. 
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1st Quarter 2025  

 

Item 1. Financial Statements 

 

 
APC GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents P 19,684,599      P 23,788,656      
Trade and other receivables - net 1,269,737        1,409,288        
Other current assets 22,321             57,716             

Total Current Assets 20,976,658      25,255,659      

Noncurrent Assets
Deferred exploration costs 218,054,455    218,054,455    
Investment property 9,156,000        9,156,000        
Other noncurrent assets 10,478,665      10,393,378      

Total Noncurrent Assets 237,689,120    237,603,833    

P 258,665,777    P 262,859,492    

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables P 27,702,662      P 30,996,458      
Advances from a related party 79,978,631      79,978,631      

Total Current Liabilities 107,681,292    110,975,089    
 

Noncurrent Liabilities  
Accrued retirement costs 1,011,648        1,011,648        
Deferred tax liability 315,201           315,201           

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,326,849        1,326,849        
Total Liabilities 109,008,141    112,301,937    

 
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company   
Capital stock 63,880,788      63,880,788      
Additional paid-in capital 144,295,958    144,295,958    
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligation 945,602           945,602           
Equity reserves (3,140,235)       (3,140,235)       
Deficit (19,815,222)     (18,926,551)     
Treasury shares - 7,606,000 shares (29,435,220)     (29,435,220)     

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Parent Company 156,731,671    157,620,342    

Equity Attributable to Non-controlling Interests (7,074,034)       (7,062,787)       
Total Equity 149,657,636    150,557,555    

P 258,665,777    P 262,859,492    

(Audited)
December 31, 2024March 31, 2025

(Unaudited)
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APC GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1st Quarter 1st Quarter
(January to March) (January to March)

INCOME
Interest income P 209,131                    P 209,131                   P 168,366                  P 168,366                   
Other income 21,927                      21,927                     14,861                    14,861                     

231,057                    231,057                   183,227                  183,227                   

EXPENSES
General and administrative expenses (1,130,537)                (1,130,537)               (1,211,594)              (1,211,594)               

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX (899,480)                   (899,480)                  (1,028,367)              (1,028,367)               
 

Provision for income tax (439)                          (439)                         (297)                        (297)                         

NET INCOME (LOSS) AFTER INCOME TAX (899,918)                   (899,918)                  (1,028,664)              (1,028,664)               
 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)  
Unrealized gain (loss) on financial assets at  fair value
    through other comprehensive income -                            -                           1,271,800               1,271,800                

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) P (899,918)                   (899,918)                  P 243,136                  243,136                   

  

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company (888,671)                   (888,671)                  (1,024,743)              (1,024,743)               
Non-controlling interests (11,247)                     (11,247)                    (3,921)                     (3,921)                      

(899,918)                   P (899,918)                  (1,028,664)              P (1,028,664)               

Total Comprehensive Income (Loss) Attributable to:  
Equity holders of the Parent Company (888,665)                   (888,665)                  247,057                  247,057                   
Non-controlling interests (11,247)                     (11,247)                    (3,921)                     (3,921)                      

(899,912)                   P (899,912)                  243,136                  P 243,136                   

Basic/Diluted Income (Loss) Per Common Share  

(P-888,671/7,504,203,997) March 31, 2025 P (0.000118)                

(P-1,024,743/7,504,203,997) March 31, 2024   P (0.000137)                

Weighted average number of common shares:
Total common shares 7,511,809,997         7,511,809,997         
Less:  Treasury shares 7,606,000                7,606,000                
Weighted average common shares 7,504,203,997         7,504,203,997         

  

(January to March)
Year-to-date Year-to-date

(January to March)

20242025
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APC GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Authorized: 
   Preferred stock - P0.01 par value 6,000,000,000 shares
   Common stock - P0.01 par value 14,000,000,000 shares

Issued P 59,981,491                  P 59,981,491              
Subscribed (net of subscription receivable)  3,899,297                     3,899,297                

Capital stock 63,880,787                  63,880,787              

Additional paid-in capital 144,295,958                144,295,958            

Unrealized gain/loss on financial assets at fair
     value through other comprehensive income

Balance at the beginning of period -                                   3,158,169                
Unrealized gain/loss -                                   1,271,800                
Balance at the end of period -                                   4,429,969                

Remeasurement loss on defined benefit
     obligation 945,602                       (210,435)                  

Equity Reserves (3,140,235)                   (3,140,235)               

Deficit
Balance at the beginning of period (18,926,551)                 (18,128,405)             
Net loss (888,671)                      (1,024,743)               

      Balance at the end of period (19,815,222)                 (19,153,148)             

Treasury shares - 7,606,000 shares (29,435,220)                 (29,435,220)             

Minority interest (7,074,034)                   (7,045,170)               
  

P 149,657,636                P 153,622,506            
  

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 

6,000,000,000 shares
14,000,000,000 shares

2025 2024
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
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Item 2.  Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 
 
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 
 

 

 
 

As at March 31, 2025, consolidated assets of APC Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the Group) amounted to  
P258.7M million, P4.2 million (2%) lower compared to the December 31, 2024 balance of P262.9 million.  
 

 Cash decreased primarily due to several payments, including P2.8 million for the accrued retirement fee 
of one employee, P0.3 million for the annual listing maintenance fee to PSE, P0.1 million for the legal 

P1.3 million for various general and administrative (G&A) expenses. These outflows 
were partially offset by P0.2 million in interest from banks and P0.2 million in proceeds from receivables. 

 
P109.0 million. The movement in this account pertains to the 

payment of the accrued and other payables. 
 
Total equity as at March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024 amounted to P149.7 million and P150.6 million, 
respectively.  The decrease, amounting to P0.9 million, is attributable to the net loss obtained during the period. 

 
There were no off-balance sheet transactions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2025 2024

Amount % % %

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents P 19,684,599      P 23,788,656      (4,104,057)     -17% 8% 9%

Trade and other receivables - net 1,269,737        1,409,288        (139,550)        -10% 0% 1%

Other current assets 22,321             57,716             (35,394)          -61% 0% 0%

Total Current Assets 20,976,658      25,255,659      (4,279,002)     -17% 8% 10%

Noncurrent Assets
Deferred exploration costs 218,054,455    218,054,455    -                 0% 84% 83%

Investment property 9,156,000        9,156,000        -                 0% 4% 3%

Other noncurrent assets 10,478,665      10,393,378      85,287            1% 4% 4%

Total Noncurrent Assets 237,689,120    237,603,833    85,287            0% 92% 90%

P 258,665,777    P 262,859,492    (4,193,715)     -2% 100% 100%

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables P 27,702,662      P 30,996,458      (3,293,797)     -11% 11% 12%

Advances from a related party 79,978,631      79,978,631      -                 0% 31% 30%

Total Current Liabilities 107,681,292    110,975,089    (3,293,797)     -3% 42% 42%
 

Noncurrent Liabilities  
Accrued retirement costs 1,011,648        1,011,648        -                 0% 0% 0%

Deferred tax liability 315,201           315,201           -                 0% 0% 0%

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,326,849        1,326,849        -                 0% 1% 1%

Total Liabilities 109,008,141    112,301,937    (3,293,797)     -3% 42% 43%
 
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company   
Capital stock 63,880,788      63,880,788      -                 0% 25% 24%

Additional paid-in capital 144,295,958    144,295,958    -                 0% 56% 55%

Remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligation 945,602           945,602           -                 0% 0% 0%

Equity reserves (3,140,235)       (3,140,235)       -                 0% -1% -1%

Deficit (19,815,222)     (18,926,551)     (888,671)        -5% -8% -7%

Treasury shares - 7,606,000 shares (29,435,220)     (29,435,220)     -                 0% -11% -11%

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Parent Company 156,731,671    157,620,342    (888,671)        -1% 61% 60%

Equity Attributable to Non-controlling Interests (7,074,034)       (7,062,787)       (11,247)          0% -3% -3%

Total Equity 149,657,636    150,557,555    (899,918)        -1% 58% 57%

P 258,665,777    P 262,859,492    (4,193,715)     -2% 100% 100%

Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis

Increase (Decrease)(Audited)
December 31, 2024March 31, 2025

(Unaudited)



50 
 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 
 

 
 

The Group ended the first quarter of 2025 with a net loss of P0.9 million. This is an improvement compared to the 
net loss incurred in the same period in 2024, primarily due to lower expenses related to the service fee for the 

.  
 
There is no unrealized gain on financial assets at fair value for the PLC shares this year, as the shares were sold in 
the previous year. 
 
As of March 31, 2025, except for what has been noted in the preceding, there were no material events or uncertainties 
known to management that had a material impact on past performance, or that would have a material impact on the 
future operations, in respect of the following: 
 

 Known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that would have a material impact on the 
Group; 

 Material commitments for capital expenditures that are reasonably expected to have a material impact on 
-term or long-term liquidity; 

 Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a material 
favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from continuing operations; 

 Signifi ;  
  
 Material changes in the financial statements of the Group for the periods ended March 31, 2025 and March 

31, 2024, except those mentioned above.        
 
  
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 
Management uses the following key performance indicators to evaluate the performance of the Group. Except for 
Net Income, these key performance indicators are not measurements in accordance with Philippine Financial 
Reporting Standards (PFRS) and should not be considered as an alternative to net income or any other measure of 
performance which are in accordance with PFRS. 
 

1. Return on Assets Ratio (ROA). Return on Assets is an indicator of how profitable a company is relative 
to its total assets. ROA gives an idea as to how efficient management is at using its assets to generate 

rnings by its total assets. 
 
2. Return on Equity Ratio (ROE). Return on Equity measures how much profit is generated with the money 

shareholders have invested in the Company. It is expressed as a percentage and calculated by dividing net 
income by total . 

 
3. Current Ratio. Current ratio is computed by dividing current assets by current liabilities. This indicates 

the liquidity of the Group in the short term and measures the peso amount of current asset available to 
cover a peso amount of current liability.  

 

1st Quarter 1st Quarter 2025 2024
(January to March) (January to March) Amount % % %

INCOME
Interest income P 209,131                    P 209,131                   P 168,366                  P 168,366                   40,764             24% 91% 92%
Other income 21,927                      21,927                     14,861                    14,861                     7,066               48% 9% 8%

231,057                    231,057                   183,227                  183,227                   47,830             26% 100% 100%

EXPENSES
General and administrative expenses (1,130,537)                (1,130,537)               (1,211,594)              (1,211,594)               81,057             7% -489% -661%

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX (899,480)                   (899,480)                  (1,028,367)              (1,028,367)               128,887           13% -389% -561%
 

Provision for income tax (439)                          (439)                         (297)                        (297)                         (141)                 -48% 0% 0%

NET INCOME (LOSS) AFTER INCOME TAX (899,918)                   (899,918)                  (1,028,664)              (1,028,664)               128,746           13% -389% -561%
 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)  
Unrealized gain (loss) on financial assets at  fair value
    through other comprehensive income -                            -                           1,271,800               1,271,800                (1,271,800)       -100% 0% 694%

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) P (899,918)                   (899,918)                  P 243,136                  243,136                   (1,143,054)       -470% -389% 133%

(January to March)

Vertical Analysis
Year-to-date Increase (Decrease)

Horizontal Analysis
Year-to-date

(January to March)

20242025
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4. Debt-to-Equity Ratio (DER). 
.  

 
 

5. Asset-to-Equity Ratio (AER). Asset-to-Equity Ratio is computed using total assets divided by the total 

and an indicator of the leverage used to finance the Group. 
 
The table below shows the comparative figures of the key performance indicators for the period in review. 

 

 
 

 
Discussion on the key performance indicators 
  
Return on Assets Ratio 
 
The in 2025 and 
2024. 
 
Return on Equity Ratio 
 
The 
2024. 
 
Current Ratio 
 
Current ratio decreased from 0.23 as at December 31, 2024 to 0.19 as at March 31, 2025 due to lower current 
liabilities this year. 
 
Debt to Equity Ratio 
 
Debt to equity ratio decreased from 0.75 as at December 31, 2024 to 0.73 as at March 31, 2025 due to lower total 
liabilities this year. 
 
Assets to Equity Ratio 
 
Asset to equity ratio decreased from 1.75 as at December 31, 2024 to 1.73 as at March 31, 2025 due to lower total 
assets this year. 
 
 
Key Variables and other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors 

The Group expects no material commitments for capital expenditures and expected funds in 2025.  To the best of 

events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on revenues; no significant elements of income or loss that 
did not arise from continuing operations aside from those disclosed in the Notes to the Audited Financial Statements; 
and no seasonal aspects with material effect on results of operations. 

APC Group, Inc. and subsidiaries maintains sufficient cash balances to meet minimum operational requirements, as 
determined by management from time to time. Additional cash requirements are sourced from affiliates. To the best 

ll have a material impact on its 
liquidity. 

Current YTD Previous Year Previous YTD

YTD YTD YTD

March 31, 2025 December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
   Return on Assets Ratio                                (0.00)                            (0.02)                            (0.00)
   Return on Equity Ratio                                (0.01)                            (0.04)                            (0.01)
   Current Ratio                                 0.19                              0.23                             0.21 
   Debt to Equity Ratio                                 0.73                              0.75                             0.73 
   Asset to Equity Ratio                                 1.73                              1.75                             1.73 
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PART II     OTHER INFORMATION 
 

Other than what has been reported, no event has since occurred. 
 
 

ANNEX TO THE MD&A SECTION 
 

 
1. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION 
 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and the following subsidiaries 

Group  
 

   Percentage of Ownership 
Subsidiaries Direct Indirect Total 
Aragorn Power & Energy Corporation (APEC) (1)   97.6% - 97.6% 

PRC Magma Energy Resources Inc. (PRC-Magma) (2) - 85.0% 85.0% 
APC Cement Corporation (APC Cement) (2) 100.0% - 100.0% 
APC Energy Resources, Inc. (APC Energy) (2) 100.0% - 100.0% 
APC Mining Corporation (APC Mining) (2) 83.3% - 83.3% 

 (1) Still in exploration stage 
(2) Still in the pre-operating stage 

 
 

2. RISK EXPOSURES  
 
Financial Risk Management  

The Group has risk management policies that systematically view the risks that could prevent the Group from 
achieving its objectives.  These policies are intended to manage risks identified in such a way that opportunities to 

-to-day 
operations and normal business processes such as strategic planning and business planning.  It is also established to 

to monitor and assess risks and compliance to internal control policies. 

Management has identified each risk and is responsible for coordinating and continuously improving risk strategies, 
processes and measures in accordance with the established business objectives. The BOD has overall responsibility 

agement framework.  Risk management policies and 
structure are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the activities of the Group. 

ity deposits, 
trade and other payables (excluding statutory payables), and advances from a related party. 

The BOD reviews and approves policies for managing these risks. These are summarized below. 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk that the obligations of the Group will not be repaid on time and in full as contracted, resulting 
in a financial loss.  It is inherent to the business as potential losses may arise due to the failure of its counter parties 
to fulfill their obligations on maturity dates or due to adverse market conditions. 

Generally, the credit risk of the Group is attributable to financial assets at amortized cost.  The Group maintains 
credit policies and continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counter parties, identified either 
individually or by group, and incorporate this information into its credit risk controls. Managing credit risk has both 
qualitative and quantitative aspects.  Credit officers must evaluate the credit quality of the counterparties and assign 
internal credit ratings upon this evaluation. 

The Group defines credit exposure as all transactions where losses might occur due to the fact that counterparties 

credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these 
financial assets.  Credit risk from cash in banks is mitigated by transacting only with reputable banks duly approved 
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by management.  

Liquidity Risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.  The 

liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable 
losses or ri . 
 
The Group seeks to manage its liquid funds through cash planning on a weekly basis.  As part of its liquidity risk 
management, the Group regularly evaluates its projected and actual cash flows.  It also continuously assesses 
conditions in the financial markets for opportunities to pursue fund raising activities.  
 
Equity Price Risk 
 

future values of the investment securities. The Group manages the equity price risk through diversification and 

senior management on a regul . 
 
There is no material change in the financial risk exposures of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries particularly 
on currency, interest, credit, market and liquidity risks on its March 31, 2025 interim financial statements compared 
to the December 31, 2024 audited consolidated financial statements of APC Group Inc. and subsidiaries. 
 
Fair value of Financial Instruments 
 
A comparison by category of the carrying values and esti
that are carried in the consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024 are as 
follows: 

 
* Excluding cash on hand amounting to P49,200 as at March 31, 2025 and P50,000 as of December 31, 2024 
**  
***Excluding statutory liabilities. 
 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables, Trade and Other Payables and Advances from Related 
Parties 
 
Due to the short-term nature of the transactions, the carrying values approximate the fair values at reporting dates. 
   
Deposits and Subscription Payable 
 
Due to non-availability of definite payment terms, there is no reliable source of fair values as at reporting dates. 
 

31, 2025 and December 31, 2024: 
 

Carrying Carrying
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value

Financial assets:
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents* 19,635,399 19,635,399 23,738,656 23,738,656
Trade and other  Receivables 1,269,737 1,269,737 1,409,288 1,409,288

Deposits** 23,821 23,821 23,821 23,821
Total financial assets 20,928,958 20,928,958 25,171,765 25,171,765
Financial liabilities:
Other financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables*** 27,690,878 27,690,878 30,965,369 30,965,369
Advances from related parties 79,978,631 79,978,631 79,978,631 79,978,631
Total current financial liabilities 107,669,509 107,669,509 110,944,000 110,944,000

March 31, 2025  December 31, 2024 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
The Audited Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules for the year 2023 are filed as part of Form 17A. 

 
APC GROUP AND SUBSIDIARIES 
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES FORM 
17-A, Item 7 

 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

 
 Consolidated Financial Statements Report 

Independent Auditors  
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as of December 31, 2024 

and 2023 CSFP 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 CSCI 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 

for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 CSCE 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 CSCF 
    Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements                                                                                  NCFS 
 

Supplementary Schedules 
 

Report of Independent Auditors on Supplementary Schedules: 
I. Map of the Relationships of the Companies within the Group Attached 

 
II. Supplementary Schedules Required by Paragraph 6D, Part II of SRC 

Rule 68, as Amended (2011) 
A. Financial Assets Attached 
B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, 

and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties) Attached 
C. Amount Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated 

during the Consolidation of Financial Statements Attached 
D. Long-term Debt Not Applicable 
E. Indebtedness to Related Parties Attached 
F. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers Not Applicable 
G. Capital Stock Attached 

 
III. Financial Ratios  Key Performance Indicators                                                                    Attached 

 
IV. Schedule of all the effective standards and interpretation Attached 

 
V. Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration Not Applicable 
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Criteria for Board and Management ratings are as follows: 
 
1. Collective Board Rating  relates to: 

 
 Board Composition  related to how the Board members assess the Board as a whole based on 

their balance/diversity, knowledge/competencies, qualifications/background and experience; 

 Board Efficiency and Importance  
sion on short- and long-

term goals, business strategies and plans, risk and regulation, follow up of business plan and 
strategy, objective and budget, promotion of good governance principles, policies and 
mechanisms, and promotion of continuing education and/or training; 

 Board Meetings and Participation  relates to how Board members assess frequency of Board 
meetings, if they were given chance to fully and positively participate, were provided quality 
materials and sufficient time for study, provided easy and timely access to information or 
inputs and whether there is efficient use of the time allocated for each meeting. 

 

2. Board Committee Rating  relates to how the Committee members and Management rate the performance 
of the following Committees for the past year; 

 

 Executive Committee 

 Audit Committee 

 Risk Oversight Committee 

 Corporate Governance Committee 

 Related Party Transactions Committee 

 Compensation and Remuneration Committee 
 

3. In -rating  related to how the Directors assess their independence, participation and 
expertise 
 

4. Rating  relates to how well the Chairman of the Board and the President/CEO demonstrates leadership, 
integrity, diligence and adherence to corporate governance principles and practices as well as the 
assessment of the following key officers for their over-all performance: 

 
 Chief Audit Executive 
 Chief Risk Officer 
 Compliance Officer 

 
The Board reviews the results of this evaluation and greed on clear action plans to address any issues raised. In 
line with governance best practices, the Company also ensures that board evaluations shall be facilitated by a 
third-party independent assessor every three (3) years reckoned from January 1, 2017 (effectivity date of the 
2016 Code of Corporate Governance for Publicly Listed Companies). 

 
 

The annual performance evaluations of the Board, its individual members and Board Committees for 2024 
performance was conducted within the first half of 2025. The results of the evaluation, which found the Board to be 
functioning well to its mandate, will be discussed and presented to the Board through the Corporate Governance 
Committee.  The appraisal form that was used for such is found in the company website: 

 
https://www.apcaragorn.net/wp-content/uploads/APC-Board-Eval-Form-2024.pdf   
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 interest. 
 
All Directors, Officers and Employees are required to disclose in writing to the Management, within forty- eight (48) 
hours, any financial or personal interest in any transaction involving the Company to ensure that potential conflicts 
of interest are brought to the attention of Management. 
 
Directors shall inhibit themselves from participating in any discussion, deliberation and decision-making concerning 
any issue or transaction where they may be conflicted. 
 
The Company shall not extend loans to Directors and Officers unless these grants are conducted at arms- length basis 
and at prevailing market rates. 
 
Directors, Officers and Employees are prohibited from buying or selling (trading) shares of stock of APC Group, Inc. 
using material non-public information and obtained by reason of position, contact within or other relationship with 
the Company. They are also prohibited from passing on such information to someone else who then buys or sells 

 
 
Trading Restriction Period  Directors, Officers and Employees and covered persons mentioned above are 
prohibited from trading in APC Group, Inc. shares within the period five (5) trading days before and two (2) trading 
days after the disclosure of quarterly and annual financial results and any other material information. 
 
This is pursuant to Section 13.2 of the PSE Disclosure Rules  rector or Principal Officer of an Issuer must 

-public information is obtained and 
up to two full trading days after the price sensitive information is  

 
Reporting Requirements  Directors, Officers and Employees are required to report to the governance, Corporate 
Affairs and Investor Relations (GCAIR) Department all dealings in APC Group, Inc. shares within three (3) 
business days from the date of trading. 
requirements with regard to their shareholdings in the Company shall do so immediately and correctly. 
 
APC also prohibits its directors, officers, and employees from using privileged corporate information for personal 
gain. Trading/ownership of Company shares as of December 31, 2024 is shown below: 
 

Name 
Shareholdings as of 
December 31, 2023 

(Direct and Indirect) 
Acquisition Disposition 

Shareholdings as of 
December 31, 2024 

(Direct and Indirect) 

Ownership 
Percentage 

Willy N. Ocier               2,207,001       -                 -                 2,207,001  0.03 
Ian Jason R. Aguirre                     1               -                  -                                1       -    
Armin Antonio B. Raquel Santos1              10,000               -                  -                       10,000       -    
Edmundo L. Tan                234,701              -             -                     234,701       -    
Jerry C. Tiu                  487,001                -                 -                     487,001  0.01 
Virginia A. Yap                     10,001                   -               -                       10,001  - 
Rafael M. Alunan III                             1               -                 -                                1  - 
Total             2,948,706                  -            -                 2,948,706  0.04 

      
1Elected on June 28, 2024.      

 
 

For governance-related issues or concerns, stakeholders may refer to: 
Governance and Corporate Affairs Department 5th Floor Tower A, Two E-com Center 
Palm Coast Avenue, Mall of Asia Complex Pasay City 1300 Philippines 
Tel.No.:(632) 8662-8888 
Email: apc_governance@bellecorp.com 

 

The Company, through its Chief Compliance Officer, stresses its compliance with applicable laws and adherence 
to ethical practices as stated in the CBCE and the Revised Manual. APC is not aware of any non-compliance with 
the Revised Manual by any of its directors, officers or employees. 
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CERTIFICATION 
 
UNDERTAKING TO PROVIDE COPIES OF THE INFORMATION STATEMENT AND THE ANNUAL 
REPORT 
 
UPON WRITTEN REQUEST OF ANY SHAREHOLDER OF RECORD ENTITLED TO NOTICE OF AND 
VOTE AT THE MEETING, THE COMPANY SHALL FURNISH SUCH SHAREHOLDER WITH A COPY OF 

-A WITHOUT CHARGE. ANY SUCH WRITTEN 
REQUEST SHALL BE ADDRESSED TO: 

 
 

ATTY. RICHARD ANTHONY D. ALCAZAR 
Corporate Secretary 

Tan Acut Lopez & Pison Law Offices 
23rd Floor East Tower, Tektite Towers, Centre 

Exchange Road, Ortigas Center 
Pasig City 1605 



 

 

2025  
 

Guidelines for Participating via Remote Communication and Voting in Absentia 
 

The 2025 Annual  Meeting (ASM) of APC Group, Inc. APC  or the ) will be held on 
June 26, 2025, Thursday, at 1100 A.M. and the Board of Directors of the Company has fixed the end of trading 
hours of the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. on May 15, 2025 ) as the record date for the 
determination of stockholders entitled to the notice of, to attend, and to vote at such meeting and any adjournment 
thereof. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company has approved and authorized stockholders to participate in the ASM via 
remote communication and to exercise their right to vote in absentia or by proxy.  
 
Registration Period: The conduct of the meeting will be streamed live, and stockholders may attend the meeting 
by registering until June 23, 2025, 12:00 P.M. via apc governance@bellecorp.com and by submitting the following 
requirements and documents, subject to verification and validation: 

 
1. Individual Stockholders 
 

1.1. Clear digital copy of the front and back portion of a valid government-issued identification card/s 
(ID/s), which include the passport, driv
order to validate the registration of the shareholder (up to 2MB) 

1.2. Stock certificate number 
1.3. Active e-mail address/es 
1.4. Active contact number/s, with area and country codes 

 
2. Multiple Stockholders or with joint accounts 

2.1. Clear digital copy of the front and back portion of a valid government-issued identification card/s 

order to validate the registration of the shareholders (up to 2MB) 
2.2. Stock certificate number/s 
2.3. Active e-mail addresses of the stockholders 
2.4. Active contact numbers, with area and country codes 
2.5. Digital copy of an authorization letter executed by all named holders, authorizing a holder to 

vote for and on behalf of the account 

3. Corporate Stockholders 
3.1. -resident) attesting to the 

authority of the representative to vote for and on behalf of the corporation 
3.2. Clear digital copy of the front and back portion of a valid government-issued identification card/s 

 ID, among others to 
validate the registration of the authorized representative (no more than 2MB) 

3.3. Active e-mail address/es of the authorized representative 
3.4. Active contact number of authorized representative, with area and country codes 

4. PCD Participants/Brokers 
4.1. equivalent for non-resident) attesting to the 

authority of the representative to vote for and on behalf of the PCD participant/broker 
4.2. Digital copy of the certificate of shareholdings issued by the PCD/broker 

4.3. Clear digital copy of the front and back portion of a valid government-issued identification 
 ID, among others 

to validate the registration of the authorized representative (no more than 2MB) 
4.4. Active e-mail address/es of the authorized representative 
4.5. Active contact number of authorized representative, with area and country codes 

 
 





 OF  
  

APC GROUP, INC. 
 

Held  28  June  at 11:00 a.m. 
Via Webinar (Zoom) link  

 
 

 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: 
 
WILLY N. OCIER    Chairman of the Board 
      Director 
      Chairman, Executive Committee 
      Chairman, Compensation and Remuneration Committee 
 
IAN JASON R. AGUIRRE   President & CEO 
      Director 
      Member, Executive Committee 
        
JACKSON T. ONGSIP    Director 
      Chairman, Risk Oversight Committee 
      Member, Audit Committee  
      Member, Corporate Governance Committee 
      Member, Related Party Transactions Committee 
 
RAFAEL M. ALUNAN III   Lead Independent Director 
      Chairman, Audit Committee 
      Member, Corporate Governance Committee 
      Member, Related Party Transactions Committee 
      Member, Risk Oversight Committee 
 
EDMUNDO L. TAN    Director 
      Member, Compensation and Remuneration Committee 
 
VIRIGINIA A. YAP    Director  
      Member, Executive Committee 
      Member, Compensation and Remuneration Committee 
 
JERRY C. TIU     Independent Director 
      Chairman, Corporate Governance Committee 
      Chairman, Related Party Transactions Committee 
      Member, Audit Committee 
      Member, Risk Oversight Committee 
 
ALSO PRESENT: 
 
 
RICHARD ANTHONY D. ALCAZAR  Corporate Secretary 
MICHELLE T. HERNANDEZ   /Host  
MS. MARIE JOY T. CO    Compliance Officer and Treasurer 
MS. CRISTINA CASTRO NUGUIT  Third Party Tabulator 
  
Stockholders present in person or 
represented by proxy 

 3,973,119,155 constituting 52.95% of the 
total outstanding capital of the 
Corporation as of record date 31 May 
2024 (Please see the Record of 

 
 
 
The representatives Reyes Tacandong & Co., were likewise in 
attendance to address questions from the stockholders during the meeting. 
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========================================================================  
 
 After the national anthem, the host, Ms. Michelle T. Hernandez welcomed everyone to the 
2024 Annual Stockholders d the Board of Directors and 
officers who were present, namely: 
 
 Mr. Willy N. Ocier   - Chairman of the Board 
 Mr. Ian Jason R. Aguirre  -  President and Chief Executive Officer 
 Mr. Jackson T. Ongsip 
 Atty. Edmundo L. Tan 
 Ms. Virginia A. Yap 
 Mr. Rafael M. Alunan III  - Lead Independent Director 
 Mr. Jerry C. Tiu    - Independent Director 
 Atty. Richard Anthony D. Alcazar - Corporate Secretary 
 Ms. Marie Joy Co-Reyes  - Compliance Officer 
 Representatives from Reyes Tacandong 
     & Company.  
 
 I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
Mr. Willy N. Ocier, the Chairman of the Board, welcomed the stockholders, called the meeting to 
order, and presided over the proceedings.  The Corporate Secretary, Atty. Richard Anthony D. 
Alcazar, recorded the minutes of the meeting. 
 
 
II.  CERTIFICATION OF NOTICE AND QUORUM 
 

The Corporate Secretary certified that the notice 
Definitive Information Statement on via 

 were uploaded via PSE EDGE on May 22, 2024 and 
on the same day. In addition, the Corporate Secretary 

also certified that the notices of the meeting were distributed electronically and by courier to the 
shareholders starting on May 23, 2024. 

 
The Chairman inquired from the Corporate Secretary whether there was a quorum for the 

transaction of business by the stockholders. 
 

 The Corporate Secretary certified that based on record, stockholders who have registered 
and participated in the meeting, personally and by proxy, represented 3,973,119,155 common 
shares, constituting 52.95% of the total outstanding capital stock of the Corporation as of record 
date May 31, 2024.  

 
The Corporate Secretary then certified that there was a quorum for the meeting. He then 

acknowledged the presence of Ms. Cristina Castro Nuguit who has been engaged as third-party 
tabulator of votes cast for the meeting. Furthermore, he informed all stockholders and other 
participants that the meeting would be recorded  

 
The Chairman then declared the existence of quorum and explained that though the holding of 

the meeting was in a virtual format, it was the desire of the Company to provide the stockholders the 
opportunity to participate in said meeting to the same extent possible as in an in-person meeting. 

 
He then invited everyone to listen to a brief discussion on the rules of conduct and voting 

procedures for the meeting. 
 
The Corporate Secretary discussed the rules of conduct and voting procedures set forth in the 

with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, as follows: 
 

   First, stockholders who notified the Corporation of their intention to 
participate in this meeting by remote communication have sent their questions or 
comments through the e-mail address provided for the purpose.  
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 Stockholders now participating through the livestream can continue sending more 
questions throughout the duration of the meeting through the Q&A button located at 
the bottom of your screens.  
 
   Second, some of the questions or comments received will be read out 
during the Open Forum, after all matters in the agenda are concluded.  
 
As the time dedicated for the meeting, however, is limited, the questions and 
comments which will not be read out and responded to during the meeting will be 
answered by the appropriate officers of the Corporation concerned.  
 
  Third, resolutions will be proposed for adoption by the stockholders for 
each of the items in the Agenda for the meeting. Each proposed resolution will be 
shown on the screen as the same is being taken up. 
 
  Finally, we have tabulated the votes cast as of June 25, 2024. These votes 
are from stockholders owning 3,973,119,155 voting shares, representing 52.95% of 
the total outstanding voting shares. The results of this preliminary tabulation will be 
referred to when the voting results are reported out throughout the meeting.  
 
The results of the final tabulation of votes, with full details of the affirmative and 
negative votes and abstentions, will be reflected in the Minutes of this Meeting.  

 
 
III. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING. 
 
 

The Chairman proceeded to the next item in the agenda which was the approval of the 
minutes of the previous annual meeting of the stockholders held on June 22, 2023 posted on the 

. A copy of the minutes is also appended to 
 The 

minutes reflect the proceedings of the last annual meeting, including resolutions adopted and 
approved, with corresponding tabulation of votes for each item then for approval. 

 
Upon inquiry from the Chair, the Corporate Secretary reported that based on the tabulation of 

votes, 100% of the shareholders present voted in favor of the approval. Below was the tabulation of 
votes: 

 
In Favor Against Abstain 

No. of Shares % No. of 
Shares 

% No. of 
Shares 

% 

3,973,119,155 100% 0 0% 0 0% 
 
The Chairman then declared that the motion was carried and the minutes were approved, and 

the following resolution was passed and adopted: 
 

APC Group, Inc. held on June 22, 2023 is  
 
The Corporate Secretary was requested by the Chairman to ensure that the minutes of the 
meeting reflect he tabulation of the votes for all agenda items requiring stockholder approval. 
   
IV. APPROVAL OF THE 2023 OPERATION AND RESULTS 
 
 The Chairman proceeded to the next item in the agenda which is the approval of the 2023 
operations and results of the Corporation. The Chairman explained that the copies of the Corporation s 
Definitive Information Statement and the accompanying Annual Report had been sent and made 
available to all stockholders several weeks prior to the meeting, and the same were likewise posted in 

 The Annual report contains the summaries of operations and the Audited 
Financial Statements of the Corporation for the Year 2023. The Information Statement and Annual 
report likewise contains the items required under Section 49 of the Revised Corporation Code. 
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The Chairman then requested the President and CEO, Mr. Ian Jason Aguirre, to render his 

2023.  The President reported as follows: 
 
 Good morning and welcome everyone. Mr. Chairman, members of the Board of 
Directors and fellow shareholders. Thank you for joining us today.  
 
 I am pleased to report that your Company, through its subsidiary Aragorn Power and 
Energy Corporation or APEC, continues to move forward in its Kalinga Geothermal Project 
(KGP). In July of 2023, APEC was awarded a new Geothermal Service Contract (GSC), 
denominated as the South West Kalinga Geothermal Project, which has a fresh 25-year term 
inclusive of a 7-year exploration period. Furthermore, in early 2024, the DOE granted our 
request for an extension of our existing Kalinga GSC.  
   
With the newly awarded South West Kalinga GSC, APEC will proceed to conduct exploration 
activities in the South West portion of the contract area through 3G surveys and eventual 
exploratory and appraisal drilling. To date, Information Education and Communication 
campaigns are ongoing as well as community engagement meetings, all in preparation for the 3G 
surveys.  
 
 With the favorable approval of the contract term extension for the old Kalinga GSC, 
exploration activities will continue with the objective of eventually leading to the resumption of 

 
 
 Your Company continues its commitment to build long-lasting relationships with its host 
communities through the furtherance of its educational assistance and tree-planting activities 
within the 8 ancestral domains in its contract area. To date, the Project has already extended 
scholarships to 410 grantees and has produced 349 graduates in various courses of study 
inclusive of 62 licensed professionals. In fact, five (5) scholar graduates in engineering and 
geology have been hired for the Project. Scholarship accounts for 29% of our Community 
Development expenditures. We have also planted more than 100 native bamboo and guyabano 
seedlings in landslide prone areas within our service contract.  
  
 At this point, let me briefly go through the Company s financial performance in 2023. 
For your reference, the details of the financial statements are contained in the Information 
Statement sent to the stockholders.   

 The Company recorded consolidated assets of P269.0 million, higher by 4% from P259.6 
million in 2022. 

 Total liabilities is at P115.6 million, with a 3% or P3.3 million increase versus last year. 

 For the year, the Company recognized P13.7 million in revenues, mainly brought about 
by the one-time proceed from the settlement of long-outstanding claim. General and 
admin costs is 26% higher from the previous year due to the legal fees incurred 
attributable to the settlement of the claim. This resulted to a significant improvement in 
the total comprehensive income versus last year. Overall,  equity ended at 
P153.4MM, higher by 4% vs. last year due to income recognized by the Company. 

 I am also pleased to share with you that your Company received a 2 Golden Arrow 
Award, being recognized by the Institute of Corporate Directors as one of the top Philippine 
publicly listed companies in corporate governance based on the 2022 ASEAN Corporate 
Governance Scorecard (ACGS) results. 
 
 Looking forward, we are excited to build on our current momentum. With the awarding 
of the new SW Kalinga GSC and extension of our existing Kalinga GSC, the Company remains 
focused on its mission of creating value for our investors and our stakeholders. 
 
 I want to extend my thanks to our dear shareholders, for your continued patience, trust 
and confidence, to our Board of Directors, for their counsel, support and wisdom, and to our 
employees for their hard work and dedication. We look forward to working together with our 
many stakeholders in order to advance our project and create more value in the future.   
 



  Minutes of the Stockholders Meeting 
                                                                                                                                       APC Group, Inc. held 28 June 2024 
    Page 5 

       
 Thank you and good day to everyone.  
 
 The Chairman then requested Corporate Secretary to announce the results of the voting for 
the approval of the 2023 Operations and Results of the Corporation which were appended to the 
Definitive Information Statement, the 2023 Annual Report and the Consolidated Audited Financial 
Statements of the Corporation as of December 31, 2023 as audited by Reyes Tacandong & Co. 
 

The Corporate Secretary reported that based on the tabulation of votes, 100% of the 
shareholders present voted in favor of the approval. Below was the tabulation of votes: 

 
In Favor Against Abstain 

No. of Shares % No. of 
Shares 

% No. of Shares % 

3,973,119,155 100% 0 0% 0 0% 
 

 The Chairman then declared that the motion was carried and the minutes were approved, and 
the following resolution was passed and adopted: 

 
 RESOLVED, That the 2023 Annual Report, 2023 Consolidated Audited 
Financial Statements of APC Gr 2023 Operations and 

 
  

V. Approval and Ratification of the Acts of the Board of Directors and Management 
  

 The next item in the agenda was the approval and ratification of the acts of the Board of 
Directors and Management during their term of office. The Chairman explained that the summary of 
these acts could be found in the Definitive Information Statement that was made available to all 
stockholders.  
 

Upon inquiry from the Chair, the Corporate Secretary reported that based on the tabulation of 
votes, 100% of the shareholders present voted in favor for the approval and ratification. Below was 
the tabulation of votes: 

 
In Favor Against Abstain 

No. of Shares % No. of 
Shares 

% No. of Shares % 

3,973,119,155 100% 0 0% 0 0% 
 

The Chairman then declared that the motion was carried and the minutes were approved, and 
the following resolutions were passed and adopted: 
 

 , that all acts, transactions and contracts entered into as well 
as resolutions made and adopted by the Board of Directors, Board Committees, and 

confirmed. 
 
 RESOLVED FINALLY, that all acts, proceedings, elections and 
appointments performed or taken pursuant to the foregoing resolution, be in all 

 
 

VI.   ELECTION OF DIRECTORS FOR 2024-2025 
 
 The next item in the agenda was the election of directors for the year 2024-2025.  The 
Chairman requested the Corporate Secretary to announce the nominees. 
 

The Corporate Secretary announced the following nominees, prequalified by the Corporate 
Governance Committee, for the election to the Board for 2024-2025: 
 

  

1. Willy N. Ocier 
2. Ian Jason R. Aguirre 
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3. Armin Antonio B. Raquel Santos 
4. Edmundo L. Tan 
5. Virginia A. Yap 
6. Rafael M. Alunan III as Independent Director 
7. Jerry C. Tiu as Independent Director 

    
 Upon inquiry from the Chair, the Corporate Secretary announced the tabulation of the votes 
received and cast in favor of the said nominees, as follows: 
 

Nominee Number of shares 
voting in favor 

 

% 

Willy N. Ocier 3,973,119,155 100% 
Ian Jason R. Aguirre 3,973,119,155 100% 
Armin Antonio B. Raquel Santos 3,973,119,155 100% 
Edmundo L. Tan 3,973,119,155 100% 
Virginia A. Yap 3,973,119,155 100% 
Rafael M. Alunan III 3,973,119,155 100% 
Jerry C. Tiu 3,973,119,155 100% 

  
 The Corporate Secretary announced that since there were only seven (7) nominees and with 
the votes received, all nominees have obtained sufficient votes for election. The following resolution 
was then passed and approved: 
 

 
Group, Inc. for a period of one (1) year until their successors shall have been duly 
elected and qualified. 
 

WILLY N. OCIER 
IAN JASON R. AGUIRRE     

 ARMIN ANTONIO B. RAQUEL SANTOS 
EDMUNDO L. TAN  
VIRGINIA A. YAP 

   
 Independent Directors   

  
 RAFAEL ALUNAN III 

JERRY C. TIU 
 
 The Chairman then congratulate the newly elected members of the Board. On behalf of the 
Board of Directors, he expressed gratitude to Mr. Jackson Ongsip for his valuable contributions to the 
Company as one of its directors and former President and CEO. He proceeded to wish him well in all 
his endevours.   
 
VII.   APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR 
 
 
2024. The Corporate Secretary informed the shareholders that the Audit Committee had pre-screened 
and recommended, and the Board had endorsed for consideration of the stockholders, the appointment 

4.  
 

Upon inquiry from the Chair, the Corporate Secretary reported that based on the tabulation of 
votes, 100% of the shareholders present voted in favor for the approval and ratification. Below was 
the tabulation of votes: 

 
In Favor Against Abstain 

No. of Shares % No. of 
Shares 

% No. of Shares % 

3,973,119,155 100% 0 0% 0 0% 
 
 Accordingly, the following resolution was passed and approved: 
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Auditor of APC Group, Inc. for 2024, under such terms and conditions as may be 

 
 
 The Chairman then announced that as stated in the Definitive Information Statement, all 
stockholders of record were allowed to submit questions via email to 
apc_governance@bellecorp.com, and through the live comments broadcast section of the proceedings. 
He added that for those not entertained due to time constraints, the Corporation will endeavor to 
respond to their questions via email.  
 
 Upon request of the Chair, the host read the following question sent via email: 

 
How can the Project improve to the energy crisis in the Philippines? 

 
The President and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Ian Jason Aguirre gave the following reply: 
 
 The Project aims to support the National Renewable Energy Program (NREP) 2020-

35% in 2030 and 50% by 2040. An additional capacity of about 700 MW is targeted for 
geothermal. 
 
 The other question that was sent to us states: Do you have plans to enter into other 
renewable energy aside from geothe   to which Mr. Aguirre replied: 
 
 Currently, the Company is focused on its existing Geothermal Service Contracts, but is 
still open to enter into other renewable energy source.  
 

 
VIII. OTHER MATTERS 
 
 The Chairman inquired if there were other matters that could properly be taken up at this 
meeting.  The Corporate Secretary confirmed that there was none. 
 
 
IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 There being no further business to transact, the meeting was, upon motion duly made and 
seconded thereupon, adjourned. The Chai
meeting. 
 
 
CERTIFIED CORRECT: 
      
 

 
RICHARD ANTHONY D. ALCAZAR 
  Corporate Secretary 
           
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
WILLY N. OCIER 
          Chairman  
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